Planning Committee p—Y Vale

of White Horse
Ag e“ da District Council
Contact: Susan Harbour, Democratic Services Officer
Telephone number 01235 540306
Email: susan.harbour@southandvale.gov.uk
Date: 27 August 2013
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk
A meeting of the
Planning Commiittee
will be held on Wednesday 4 September 2013 at 6.30 pm
Council Chamber, The Abbey House, Abingdon
Members of the Committee:
Councillors
Robert Sharp (Chairman) Sue Marchant
Sandy Lovatt (Vice chairman) Jerry Patterson (Opposition spokesman)
Eric Batts Helen Pighills
Roger Cox Janet Shelley
Anthony Hayward Margaret Turner
Bob Johnston Catherine Webber
Bill Jones John Woodford

Substitute councillors
All other councillors trained in planning matters

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request. These
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the
officer named on this agenda. Please give as much notice as possible
before the meeting.

Margaret Reed
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Vale of White Horse District Council
Planning Committee agenda - Wednesday, 4th September, 2013

Page 1



Agenda

Open to the Public including the Press

Map and vision
(Page 5)

A map showing the location of the venue for this meeting is attached. A link to information
about nearby car parking is http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/transport/car _parking/default.asp

The council’s vision is to take care of your interests across the Vale with enterprise, energy
and efficiency.

1. Chairman's announcements

To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping matters.

2. Urgent business

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be considered as urgent
business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent.

3. Cumulative Housing Figures
(Pages 6 - 8)

To receive an up date of housing figures relating to commitments for major housing schemes

to address the council’s housing land shortfall.

4. Notification of substitutes and apologies for absence

To record the attendance of substitute members, if any, who have been authorised to attend in
accordance with the provisions of standing order 17(1), with notification having been given to
the proper officer before the start of the meeting and to receive apologies for absence.

5. Minutes
To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the committee meeting held on 24 July
2013 (circulated separately).

6. Declarations of pecuniary interests and other declarations

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests, and other declarations, in

Vale of White Horse District Council
Planning Committee agenda - Wednesday, 4th September, 2013

Page 2



respect of items on the agenda for this meeting.

7. Statements and petitions from the public on planning applications

Any statements and/or petitions from members of the public under standing order 33, relating
to planning applications, will be made or presented at the meeting.

8. Statements, petitions and questions from the public on other matters

Any statements and/or petitions from the public under standing order 32 will be made or
presented at the meeting.

9. Materials

To consider any materials submitted prior to the meeting of the Committee.

Any materials submitted will be on display prior to the meeting.

Planning applications
(Pages 9 - 11)

All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked exempt/confidential
(e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports within this agenda are held
(normally electronically) in the application file (working file) and referenced by its application
number. These are available to view at the Council Offices (Abbey House, Abingdon) during
normal office hours.

Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be reported
and summarised at the meeting.

10. Land at Priors Court Farm Church, West Hanney. P13/V0631/FUL
(Pages 12 - 25)

11. 61 Oxford Road, Abingdon. P13/V1454/FUL
(Pages 26 - 42)

12. 5 The Garth, Botley. P13/V0924/HH
(Pages 43 - 51)

Vale of White Horse District Council
Planning Committee agenda - Wednesday, 4th September, 2013

Page 3



13. Leafield Care Home, 32A Springfield Drive, Abingdon. P13/V1388/EX
(Pages 52 - 60)

14. 5 Larch Close, Southmoor. P13/V1579/HH
(Pages 61 - 66)

15. Dallas, Westbrook Street, Blewbury. P13/V1000/FUL
(Pages 67 - 78)

16. Thames Valley Police Station, Church Street, Wantage. P13/V1044/LB
(Pages 79 - 86)

Exempt information under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972

None.

Vale of White Horse District Council
Planning Committee agenda - Wednesday, 4th September, 2013

Page 4



Vale of White Horse District Council

M Va’e Abbey House, Abbey Close, Abingdon, OX14 3JE
=
of White Horse

District Council

Tel: 01235 520202 Fax: 01235 532217
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

\ A34
K|d||ngto\n/
M4O

ﬁbmgdon
Farmgdon

2=

A4183T0 4 k
A34, OXFORD m
5

v
A34T O
OXFORD &
M40JC T9

GRDD

SPRIN
; A RO

V1CT0,

ABBEY MEADOW

WATER
FEATURE

-U A415 TO
&NGDON (A420) &
ANTAGE (A338)
CD - ABINGDON

COMMUNITY
HOSPITAL

OPEN AIR
SWIMMING POOL

|

FAIRACRES
RETAIL
PARK

A34TO

M4 JCT 13 A415 TO
y A4074,
READING

© www.giveway.co.uk 2008  Tel: 0800019 0027.
ou 05 data. PU100040256. Crown ©2008.

Wan!age 7

S T
Bicester /Q M1 1

"&9\ A420 /

A4074 M40

/ A34 Dldcot Wycom
A41 7 A41 EONS4 Wallingford

AGS% ‘> A417 Maldenhead Sloug
Readlng

Aylesbury \\a

Hemel ‘
Hem pstead ,,

A4010 \\A413

iy pA M25

\~

WHITE HORSE
LEISURE AND
TENNIS CENTRE

COUNCIL

ABBEY Close

Oxford and Didcot and is three miles from Abingdon town centre. For details of train times visit www.nationalrail.co.uk or call 08457 484950

By bus - there are a number of bus routes serving Abingdon town centre. For details of services and timetables, visit Oxfordshire County Council’s website at
www.oxfordshire.gov.uk. Contact details for bus operators can be found on the travel information pages on our website www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Parking - details of car parks charges can be found on our website

By rail - the nearest main line railway stations to Abingdon are either Didcot Parkway (seven miles) or Oxford (eight miles). Radley railway station is located on the main line between

>

Q

(D

D

D

KEY: Car Parks >
[& Abbey Close g
[P) Cattle Market (D)
Charter Multi-storey <

[P] Civic
[2 Rye Farm
Hales Meadow
[P] Audlett Drive
[P] West St Helen Street




Agenda Item 3

CUMULATIVE HOUSING FIGURES
At the meeting on 7 November 2012, the planning committee requested the inclusion in
committee reports of an up date of housing figures relating to commitments (i.e.
resolutions to grant permission and permissions) for major housing schemes to address
the councils housing land shortfall. These figures do not form part of the individual
assessment of any submitted application, which need to be assessed and recommended
on the basis of each schemes specific planning merit, but they offer an indication of how
the shortfall is being addressed. Each planning permission for these schemes is granted
on the basis of a one year implementation period only, to ensure development is initiated

and so aid reducing the housing land shortfall figures. The current commitments are

shown in the table below.

Current major housing scheme resolutions and permissions

Parish Location Appn no. & date Units Running | Status
total
Wantage Land at Broadwater, P11/V1453/0 Upto 18 14
Manor Road Permission on
appeal 21.03.2012
Reserved matters
permission on
20.12.2012
Shrivenham | Land between Station P12/V0324/FUL 31 45 | started
Road and Townsend Permission on
Road 23.10.2012
Marcham Anson Field, Morland P12/V0854/FUL 51 96
Road Resolution on
and Hyde Copse, 15.08.2012
Howard Cornish Road
East Hanney | Land south of Alfreds P11/V2103/FUL 15 111 | started
Place Permission on
07.09.2012
East Challow | Land at Challow P12/V1261/FUL 71 182 | started
Works, Main Road Permission on
18.04.2013
Kingston Land south of P12/V1302/0 50 232 | started
Bagpuize Faringdon Road, Permission on
Southmoor 16.01.2013
P12/V1721/RM
Permission on
24.04.2013
Watchfield Land south of Majors P12/V1329/FUL 120 352 | started
Road Permission on
21.12.2012
Grove Land at Stockham P12/V1240/FUL 200 552
Farm, Denchworth Resolution on
Road 07.11.2012
Ashbury Land off Walnut Trees | P12/V2048 18 570
Hill Permission on
05.04.2013
Grove Land west of Old P12/V1545/0 Up to 703
Station Road Resolution on 133
05.12.2012
Kingston Land West of Witney P12/V1836/0 Upto 811
Bagpuize Road and South of Permission on 108

A420

R4ageH13




Watchfield Cowan's Camp Depot | P12/V2283/0O Up to 911
High Street Permission on 100
16.05.2013
West Land off Rectory Farm | P12/V2429/0 13 924
Hanney Close Resolution on
18.02.2013
Wantage Land East of Chain Hill | P12/V2316/0 Up to 85 1009
Permission on
11.07.13
Steventon Land off Barnett Road | P13/V0094/0O Up to 50 1059
Permission on
26.04.2013
Shrivenham | Land east of Highworth | P12/V2582/FUL 36 1095
Road Permission on
29.04.2013
Milton Land south of Lambe P13/V0145/0 18 1113
Avenue Resolution on
24.04.2013
Kingston Land off Draycott Road | P12/V2653/FUL 98 1211
Bagpuize Permission on
24.05.2013
Faringdon Land adjacent to Folly | P13/V0344/FUL 28 1239
Park, Park Road, Permission on
Faringdon 20.05.2013
East Hanney | Land east of A338, P13/V0381 25 1264
Crown Meadow, East Permission on
Hanney 23.05.2013
Harwell Land at South Drive P13/V0129/0 Up to 1371
Resolution on 120
22.05.2013 (107 nett
increase)
Sutton Milton Road, Sutton P13/V0401/0O Up to 70 1441
Courtenay Courtenay Resolution on
05.06.2013
Steventon Land at Causeway P13/V0692/FUL 31 1472
Farm, The Causeway Resolution on
19.06.2013
Marcham Land north of Priory P13/V0859/FUL 18 1490
Lane Permission on
07.08.2013
Milton Land at Milton Hill, P13/V0467/0 48 1538
Milton Resolution on
10.07.2013
Abingdon Land east of Drayton P12/V2266/FUL 160 1698
Road Refused
24.01.2013
Allowed on appeal
11.07.2013
Marcham Kings Field, P13/V0575/0 43 1741
Sheepstead Road Resolution on
24.07.2013
Harwell Alder View, Grove Rd, | P13/V1040/0 65 1806
Harwell Resolution on
24.07.2013

Page 7




In addition there have been major residential planning applications submitted on the basis
of addressing the allocated housing shortfall which have been considered and found not

to be acceptable when considering their own planning merits notwithstanding the housing
shortfall situation. These applications are shown in the table below unless a resubmission
has been made for consideration by the council.

Housing proposals which have been refused / withdrawn

Parish Location Appn no Units Running
total
East Land west of Portway Villas, P12/V1878/FUL 21 21
Hendred Reading Road Refused 05.12.2012
Now at appeal
Stanford in | Land west of the A417 P13/V0146/FUL 73 104
the Vale Refused 23.05.2013 (nett
difference
with earlier
application)
Ashbury Land South of Idstone Road P13/V0016/FUL 18 122
Refused 11.04.2013
Sutton Land north of 92 — 112 Milton P13/V0233/FUL 34 156
Courtenay | Road Resolved to refuse
19.06.2013

Page 8

Updated 12.08.2013




Agenda Annex
Vale of White Horse District Council — Planning Committee — 21 August 2013

SUMMARY INDEX OF APPLICATIONS

Parish
Site Address

Proposal

Application No.

Former Esso
Research
Centre, Milton
Hill

Unicorn School
for the Dyslexic
Child, Berkeley
House, 20
Marcham Road,
Abingdon
Dallas,
Westbrook
Street,
Blewbury

Manor Lodge,
Church Lane,
Longworth

32 Westland
Road,
Faringdon

South Hayes,
Yarnells Hill,
Oxford

Redruthan,
Springfield
Road, Wantage

Construction of: A Class B8 home deliveries (Dot Com)
centre, with vehicle maintenance building, gatehouse,
vehicle fuelling and washing facilities, van and staff
parking, service yard, revised access from A4130,
emergency access from Featherbed Lane, landscaping
and associated infrastructure.

Recommendation: that, following a S278 and S106
agreement with the County, Planning Permission be
granted, subject to conditions.

Refurbishment of the existing building into 8no. 1
bedroom apartments and the erection of 6no. mews
terrace houses (re-submission).

Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 1
detached dwelling, and a pair of semi-detached
dwellings; with associated parking, turning, landscaping
and improvements to existing access arrangements.

Recommendation: to grant planning permission, subject
to conditions.

Erection of a new dwelling on land to the east of Manor
Lodge.

Recommendation: to refuse planning permission, for
reasons outlined in the report.

Proposed extensions to property and subdivision of
existing dwelling to create an additional dwelling.

Recommendation: to grant planning permission, subject
to conditions.

The erection of a single front extension, a two storey side
extension, a two storey rear extension and internal
alterations.

Recommendation: to grant planning permission, subject
to conditions.

Demolish existing rear lean to conservatory and replace
with single storey lean to extension.

Recommendation: to grant a Certificate of Lawful Use or
Development for the reasons outlined in the report.

Page 9

P13/V1139/FUL

P13/V0679/FUL

P13/V1000/FUL

P13/V1304/FUL

P13/V0605/FUL

P13/V1153/HH

P13/V1243/LDP



Vale of White Horse District Council — Planning Committee — 21 August 2013

82 Arthray
Road, Botley,
Oxford

45 Blandy
Avenue,
Southmoor

Alteration to ground floor extension to the kitchen. P13/V1372/HH
Recommendation: to grant planning permission, subject

to conditions.

Proposed single storey front extension. P13/V1306/HH

Recommendation: to grant planning permission, subject
to conditions.

Page 10



Vale of White Horse District Council — Planning Committee — 4 September 2013

SUMMARY INDEX OF APPLICATIONS

Parish
Site Address

Proposal

Application No.

Land at Priors
Court Farm
Church Street,
West Hanney

61 Oxford Road,
Abingdon

5 The Garth
Botley

Leafield Care
Home

32A Springfield
Drive, Abingdon

5 Larch Close
Southmoor

Dallas
Westbrook
Street,
Blewbury

Thames Valley
Police, Police
Station
Church Street,
Wantage

Erection of six dwellings (resubmission).

Recommendation: to grant planning permission subject
to a s106 agreement and conditions.

Subdivision of the main house

and the former garage structure at 61 Oxford Road to
create two detached family homes complete with
garage/car ports and private gardens

Recommendation: to grant planning permission, subject
to conditions.

Proposed two storey side extension and single
storey/rear extensions. (Re-submission of refused
application P12/V2559/HH)

Recommendation: to grant planning permission, subject
to conditions.

Extension of time limit to planning permission
P10/V0927

Recommendation: to grant planning permission, subject
to conditions.

Extension to front of property

Recommendation: to grant planning permission, subject
to conditions.

Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 1 no.
detached dwelling, a pair of semi-detached dwellings,
with associated parking, turning, landscaping and
improvements to existing access arrangements

Recommendation: to grant planning permission, subject
a further consultation period and subject to conditions

Demolition and rebuild of
boundary wall on new alignment in matching materials

Recommendation: to grant listed building consent,
subject to conditions.

Page 11

P13/V0631/FUL

P13/V1454/FUL

P13/V0924/HH

P13/V1388/EX

P13/V1579/HH

P13/V1000/FUL

P13/V1044/LB



Agenda ltem 10

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 04 September 2013

APPLICATION NO. P13/V0631/FUL

APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION

REGISTERED 27.3.2013

PARISH WEST HANNEY

WARD MEMBER(S) Matthew Barber

APPLICANT Mr Alan Cottrell

SITE Land at Priors Court Farm Church Street West
Hanney Wantage, OX12 OLW

PROPOSAL Erection of six dwellings (resubmission).

AMENDMENTS Received 19.08.13

GRID REFERENCE 440445/192740

OFFICER Laura Hudson

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 This application relates to land at Priors Court Farm, West Hanney. The site forms a
small level paddock located on the southern edge of the village contained by mature
hedgerows on all sides and adjacent to the existing residential area on the northern
and western site boundaries. The eastern site boundary lies adjacent to an access
track which provides a secondary access to Priors Court Farm.

1.2  The site is outside the village conservation area but falls within the lowland vale as
defined on the local plan proposals map. The access track also serves as a public
right of way.

1.3  The application comes to Committee due to an objection from West Hanney Parish
Council and nine letters of objection have been received from local residents.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 The application seeks full planning permission for the erection of six dwellings
accessed from the adjacent access to the farm. The application has been submitted to
address the Councils five year supply deficit.

2.2 The proposed dwellings would be arranged around a central courtyard taking on the
appearance of a former converted farmyard with barn style dwellings of traditional
proportions and single storey projections. The properties consist of three five bedroom

dwellings, one four bedroom dwelling and two two bedroom units.

2.3 The access track would be widened for a short section adjacent to the site to 4.8
metres to enable vehicles to pass. The proposal also includes improvements to the
visibility splays where the access track meets Church Street.

2.4  The application includes two affordable dwellings which equates to 40% as required by
Policy H17.

2.5 The proposal includes off street parking within the site for all the dwellings providing
four spaces for the four and five bedroom houses and two spaces for the two bedroom
houses.

2.6 A previous application for four dwellings on the site was withdrawn due to concerns

over the design, layout, lack of affordable housing and lack of improvements to the site
access.

Page 12



Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 04 September 2013

Extracts from the application drawings are attached at Appendix 1.

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

West Hanney Parish Council — Objects “primarily on the grounds of safety. Access to
the development is via a very narrow road where there is no room for passing vehicles
and the route is also designated a footpath. Furthermore we are concerned about the
impact of the development on flooding, in particular the proposed development land
and Church Street itself already experience significant standing water during periods of
heavy rain.”

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objections. Previous
concerns on the withdrawn scheme have been addressed by widening the lane
adjacent to the site and improving visibility onto Church Street. Sufficient levels of
parking and appropriate turning space are proposed within the development.
Conditions recommended.

Conservation Officer Vale — The scheme contains a variety of dwelling sizes and styles
and has been designed to resemble a traditional farm courtyard, a design solution
appropriate to the sites location. Would prefer not to see a gated access to the
development. Recommend planning permission subject to conditions in relation to
details and materials.

Landscape Architect - Vale of White Horse DC — The site is located in the Lowland Vale
which seeks to protect the long open views within or across the area. The site would
be predominantly viewed from the local footpath network to the south and would be
seen in the context of the existing housing and building which are located to the north.
Whilst there would be a local visual impact this would not justify refusal.

Countryside Officer(South Oxfordshire & Vale of White Horse) — The main habitat on
the site is grassland which is of poor quality and would not be classified as a priority
habitat. The loss of the small section of hedgerow to facilitate the access is not
significant. The Walnut tree may be suitable for roosting bats and contains several
woodpecker holes however it is shown to be retained. An informative is recommended
in relation to the need for a licence if bats are affected by the development.

Forestry Officer (South Oxfordshire District Council) — Initial request for a full tree
survey. This has been carried out and shows that the removal of a section of hedgerow
and some trees will have a limited impact. Concerns over the proximity of plot 4 to the
Walnut tree and amended plans are awaited to address this concern. An update will be
provided at the meeting.

Thames Water Development Control - No objections.

Drainage Engineer (Vale of White Horse District Council) — No objections subject to
standard conditions requring further details.

Housing Dev. (South Oxfordshire & Vale of White Horse DC) - No objections. The
scheme provides 40% affordable and the proposal for two bedroom units is
appropriate. A S106 Agreement should be entered into to secure the provision.

Waste Management Officer (District Council) - No objections. Contributions of £170 per
units for bin provision — total requirement £1020.

Provision of street name plates — contribution required of £213.60 (including

Page 13



Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 04 September 2013

installation.)

Nine letters of objections have been received from neighbouring properties raising the
following concerns:

e Concerns over increase traffic given the narrow lane from the Green to the
Church.

¢ The field floods therefore concerns over where the water will go once the

houses are built.

Church Street floods and the proposal will add to this.

The village cannot take any more houses.

The school is filled to capacity.

Public transport in the area is poor.

The Highway Officer objected to the previous application.

The access lane is not wide enough for two vehicles to pass.

The access lane is a public footpath and additional use will be dangerous.

The proposal will increase the village boundary — all development should be

within the village boundary.

The field is regularly used by wildlife.

The sewage system cannot cope with additional dwellings.

The proposal would result in the loss of peace and tranquillity to the area.

The number of houses proposed in the village far exceeds the number set out in

the IHSP (this is no longer relevant).

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P12/V1910/FUL - Withdrawn (04/02/2013)
Erection of four dwellings.

P10/V0390 - Approved (21/04/2010)

Demolition of existing modern farm buildings. Conversion and alteration of existing
timber framed barn to form a 5-bed dwellinghouse. Conversion of existing open-fronted
cartshed to form a garage and store. Conversion of part of existing covered walkway to
provide a garden room. Erection of new stone boundary walls to demarcate garden
areas to north and south of proposed dwelling.

POLICY & GUIDANCE
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies;

Policy H13 lists West Hanney as one of the smaller villages in the district suitable for
new residential development on sites capable of accommodating not more than four
small dwellings within the built-up area of the village.

Policy GS2 indicates that outside the built-up areas of settlements new building will not
be permitted unless it is on land identified for development or is in accordance with
other specific policies.

Policy DC1 requires new development to be of a high design quality in terms of layout,
scale, mass, height, detailing, materials to be used, and its relationship with adjoining
buildings.

Policy DC5 requires safe and convenient access and parking and suitable access from
the public highway.

Policy DC6 requires hard and soft landscaping to protect and enhance the visual

Page 14



5.2

5.3

6.2

6.3

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 04 September 2013

amenities of the site and surroundings and to maximise nature conservation and wildlife
habitat creation.

Policy DC9 seeks to ensure development will not unacceptably harm the amenities of
neighbouring properties and the wider environment.

Policy H17 requires 40% provision of affordable housing for schemes of more than five
dwellings in villages.

Policy NE9 refers to development in the Lowland Vale stating that it will not be
permitted if it would have an adverse impact on the landscape particularly the long
open views across the area.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development
(paragraphs 14 and 49). Paragraphs 34 and 37 encourage minimised journey length to
work, shopping, leisure and education, and paragraphs 57, 60 and 61 seek to promote
local distinctiveness and integrate development into the natural, built and historic
environment. Paragraph 109 requires development to contribute to and enhance the
natural and local environment.

Paragraphs 47 — 49 require local planning authorities to identify a five year supply of
housing sites. Where this cannot be demonstrated relevant local plan policies for new
housing development should not be considered up-to-date until the shortfall is rectified.

The Residential Design Guide was adopted in December 2009. This sets out minimum
distances between properties in order to protect residential amenity. Guidance is also
provided on good site layouts recommending courtyards as providing defensible space
and relating well to existing development by not backing immediately onto it. The
guidance also recommends development responds to its setting and provides examples
of details found in the local area which can be incorporated into the development
including appropriate materials.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The main issues to consider in determining this application are: i) The principle of the
proposed development in this location in relation to planning policy; i) the design of the
proposed development and its landscape and visual impact; iii) impact on neighbouring
properties; iv) access and highway safety considerations; and v) drainage issues.

Principle of the proposed development

The site currently consists of undeveloped paddock land located to the south of the
main built-up area of the village. Although the site is visually well contained and relates
well to the existing settlement pattern with residential development on two sides, the
land falls clearly beyond the existing built up area of the village and is considered to
form part of the open countryside in planning terms. The proposal is therefore contrary
to policies H12, GS1 and GS2 of the adopted local plan.

However, the council does not currently have a five year supply of housing land, as
required by paragraphs 47 — 49 of the NPPF. Where the council does not have a five
year supply of housing land, the relevant local plan housing policies, including policies
H12, GS1 and GS2, are not wholly consistent with the NPPF and, therefore, hold
limited weight. The NPPF makes clear that, where the development plan is absent,
silent or the relevant policies out of date, planning permission should be granted unless

Page 15



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 04 September 2013

any adverse impacts would demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposal. The
proposed development, therefore, must be considered on its site specific merits and, in
particular, whether it constitutes a sustainable form of development as defined in the
NPPF.

West Hanney is classified as a smaller village within the adopted local plan and the
more recent village hierarchy assessment on the basis that the village itself has very
limited services and facilities. However, the village is located a short walk from East
Hanney, a large village with a range of facilities including a shop and school located in
close proximity to West Hanney. The NPPF encourages sustainable development in
rural areas including where there are groups of smaller villages where development in
one village may support services in a village nearby (para 55). On this basis it is
considered that a proposed development of this scale in West Hanney would be
considered sustainable in terms of proximity to local services and facilities when
balanced against the shortfall in housing supply.

Design and visual impact

The site currently forms an area of paddock land outside the built-up area of the village.
However, the site adjoins existing residential development on two sides to the north
and west and is visually well contained on all sides by a mature hedgerow. The site,
therefore, is distinctly separate from the more open farmland beyond. The proposed
development is relatively low density amounting to only 15 dwellings per hectare and
the majority of the surrounding hedgerow in addition to the mature Walnut tree would
be retained. This, coupled with its location set against the existing village development,
would help reduce its prominence from the surrounding landscape.

The council’s landscape officer considers that the proposal would have a limited impact
on the long open views within the lowland vale and that refusal on landscape grounds
could not be justified.

In terms of design the proposed dwellings would be arranged around a central
courtyard emulating a former farmyard to reflect the sites rural setting. The maximum
height of the proposal is two storeys with single storey projections to provide some
articulation and reduce the overall scale when viewed from the wider area.

The previous application for four dwellings proposed a much more suburban layout
which was criticised by the Architects Panel who suggested a more rural form such as a
courtyard, hence the current proposal.

Impact on residential amenity

The closest existing dwellings to the site are located to the north fronting Church Street
with relatively long gardens backing onto the site. Plots 1 and 6 are located at right
angles to the site boundary although the subservient element to plot 6 runs parallel to
the boundary. Plot 6 is approximately 30 metres away from the rear wall of the
neighbouring properties and Plot 1, 38 metres so well in excess of the minimum
distance set out in Council Design Guidance.

Plot 6 backs on to the neighbour to the west of the site, however this neighbouring
property sits in a generous curtilage and there is a mature hedgerow along the common
boundary. The rear of plot 6 sits around 13 metres from the boundary which is
considered acceptable.

The proposal is considered acceptable in residential amenity terms and complies with

Page 16



6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 04 September 2013

Policy DC9 of the adopted Local Plan which is fully consistent with the NPPF and the
adopted residential design guide.

Highway safety

The site would be accessed via the existing farm track with some improvement to meet
the requirements of the County Engineer. The improvements include greater visibility
splays where the access meets Church Street facilitated by removing the hedge to the
east. In addition the proposal includes widening the access on land within the
applicants ownership adjacent to the site to allow for vehicles to pass each other.
Whilst a 48 metre section running between Hainwood and Sunrise Cottage would
remain as existing, the County Engineer has raised no objections given the relatively
small number of additional traffic movements created by the proposal and the other
improvements proposed.

Within the site, the houses would be arranged around a central courtyard from which off
street parking would be provided for each dwelling. The two bedroom units would each
have a car port space with additional space in front, the four bedroom unit has a double
car port with two spaces in front and the five bedroom properties would all benefit from
a double car port and two spaces in front. The parking provision more than meets
County Standards for this location and there is sufficient turning within the courtyard.

Concern has been raised over pedestrian safety given the public footpath status of the
access, however, again the County Engineer is satisfied the proposal would not result
in pedestrian and vehicle conflict given the relatively modest nature of the development.

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with adopted Policy DC5 which is fully
consistent with the NPPF.

Drainage

Concern has been raised over the surface and foul water drainage and the impact on
existing flooding problems in the area. The site is not classified as an area at risk of
flooding therefore the Environment Agency have not commented on the application.
However the Council Drainage Engineer has raised no objections subject to the
submission of further details by condition to ensure that the site is effectively drained
and does not lead to flooding elsewhere. In addition Thames Water has raised no
objections in relation to capacity in the local area to cater for an additional six dwellings
both in terms of foul drainage capacity and water supply. Refusal on these grounds
could not therefore be justified.

Ecology

Concerns have been raised over the impact of wildlife on the site however the Councils
ecologist has confirmed that the site is not priority habitat. Whilst the Walnut tree has
some ecological value this is proposed to be retained and an informative is
recommended to ensure that bat roosting areas are not affected.

Contributions and deliverability

The application includes 40% affordable housing in accordance with local plan policy
H17 and the applicants have agreed to provide the bin and street naming contributions.
Given the small scale nature of the development, the County Council have not
requested any contributions to education or other county services and facilities. The
site is deliverable and, therefore, would help contribute to the current housing land

Page 17



7.2

8.0

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 04 September 2013

supply shortfall. A one year permission from the date of the decision is recommended
to ensure the development is delivered quickly.

CONCLUSION

It is accepted that the application does not accord with the development plan, however
in light of the current housing land shortfall the proposal has to be assessed against the
NPPF. The proposed development lies adjacent to the existing built-up area of the
village and has been designed to have a limited impact on the character of the area.
The facilities of East Hanney, one of the larger villages in the District, are within easy
reach of the proposed development.

It is considered that the proposal constitutes a sustainable form of development within
the definition of the NPPF, and the housing can be delivered quickly to help address
the current housing land shortfall.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to a S106
agreement to secure the affordable housing and contributions to bin provision
and street naming, and subject to the following conditions:

: TL1 - time limit - full application (full)

. Approved plans

: HY2[I] - access in accordance with specified plan(f)

: HY7[I] - car parking in accordance with plan (full)

: HY11[l] - turning space in accordance with specified plan (full)
: LS1 - landscaping scheme (submission) (full)

: LS2[l] - ;andscaping scheme (Implement) (full)

: LS4 - tree protection (full)

: MC2 - materials (samples) (full)

10 : MC9 - building details to be submitted (full)

11 : MC24 - drainage details (surface and foul) (full)

12: Sustainable drainage system deteails to be submitted

13 : RE6 - boundary details to be submitted (details not shown)(full)
14 : RE17 - slab Levels to be submitted (dwellings) (full)

O©CoONOOOR~WN =

Author / Officer: Laura Hudson, Principal Planning Officer
Contact number: 01235 540508
Email address: laura.hudson@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 18



P\BJVDe»gt/mL APPL ~ LoF
PRV ol FORA

0 O

Rochoslor Houso,

Eyrehior Rno,

Foronoos,
T o QRN
Telephoane: 318458461281

Priors Court Farm, Aug 2012
West Hanney

1:1250@A4
Site location plan P06

Page 19




4 s
wa || ueid 25
080ELEE
WwBoszE
AauueH {sam
- ‘uue Enad o

AL o

P3| VOGB( Jpuc

7
/
/
/
!
!
I
/
{
\-‘
i
/
;i
/ — i
\.\...
/
\
/
.\
/
i
i
/ \
I
/ \
[ H
[ 1
| ] |
| o
,,__. ‘

PIELRIO

Ll

ISLTy

Ny

P04 J6 anjued o}
ajqeasiuae Aetds
UOISIA WEY X WP

-
\_.‘\

UDNO9S SI) 4o _ﬁ

g o} PaLBPIA Yo BUlSIXe

SoER BUnaxs
MAAA REYD

abepon
asuung

ARjds Aliiqsia pligag -
pajued m:m paraLBl P S
pey Guisixe e A T
. — -

aq o}

——

dlen

a

N —
s vt

poomueH

pepiacad WGE X WEZ O
asenxe Ul A{ds UoL

InEiuad | usqasoy

]

FOD spoIseL

e

Pana 20
ugv —\J




_ =d __ Suchens|e pue SuEjd

0IZA0E

Le@ooKL

Aauuet 153
MU MNOD SO,

sLep

BUB] WO UCNEAS|D
ssbepoo sy

BSNOLULIEL L)

%Cfﬁ?%

PP

asnoyuey sy}
sueyd 1oy 1524 -1 101 sLield Joof). punalb -1 joid

Pizfuoes) feac

= =




SULONZAS]S PUE SUEY

DEOZI0E

B0k

EL W

AaUUEH 15270
‘e pno) solld

PR3[vosal [fuL AP

slueq ey

Uoea]s ol - Jod

uopBAB[S JSEM ~58T Sjod

uogenss jsee £2g sjoid

sabeyon ay)

uonEABIS 3SBM UOEAS[S YINoS uctieas|a 1sea

o

yinos Buioey - ays yBnolyy uonoos

-z sio/d ‘Bupped pameaca
UOIEADFS WG

-z sjold "Bupired paseaco
uepd

safienos =iy
uogeAs|d JuoL -£9Z Stofd

sugld 100) puncall g3z 10d

Page 22



SUDIEAS]S PLE SUBS

|
DEIELOZ
WiBnoLL
Azuuer) 1sap,
£l "ULES HN0T SIold

S

APP |

P13 Voe 31 [euc

B
a°o°°g;=

" ag

gwid

ucpeasis oL g joid

ol

1som Buroey - ays ybnodyy uonoos
Suleg sU)
¥ oid

=

£
T

] o™

sue|d Jooy punaib -g Jojd

=

Kjusey usgoghy

suepd Joog punoub - yoid

sued 100 punauB - yopd

i

&

1

h|
1

Page 23



SLONEABES PUR BLRjd

[

05T
WAool

ABUlIEH 158
ELIAN UnEy Pnog sioud

ypou Suoey - 8118 ybnoduyy uoRoas

SSNOYULIEL 3L Sweq sy}
ucneasa yjnos -| joid : uoneas|s ol -g j1o/d

boeg™

y; H b : : , &
& @ o A % Y
@ Gage n.,@ o e,
a Dby - 1 = = Lok °
. ¥_ g m ) = . *E v
. Ao ke @ m Yo =\ e T &
A

Page 24

n3|voest| puc

sueid ooy 154 -5 105

suepd Jaoy 151y - Jopd
i S
yeo

£ wengpa

!
#ﬁ

g N sl ey L
s . . oo [
e e m. L b

sueid Jooj) 181y -g jod

j
[[I[[IN
il

[IEC ]

[ [
L
[ S—

ey




_ oza —_ SLOGEAB[S PUR SUBJ]

0E0ZI0E
e@oaLit :
Kauuel jsaap
- ‘uuey Pnos siond

Seq By
UDNEAS|3 Lnos -gyz s1o[d

Hee

Fpp !

LolEAS]E J5am - T«c_n_

ol Bl

UINOS LOY UORBASID

sueq 2y;
uoREAL]2 YINas -t 1ojd

uoneAs|a 1538 - § jojd

=

il

N2 (Voo | ferl

suleq ay}
uoneAsfe Lpoy - g 30id

}S&M DY UoNeAs|S

sweq sy
UoNEASD J5am ~ g jojd

atnoluUel &)

UOEEAZS[ LoU - | yopd

5055

q

Page 25



Agenda ltem 11

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

APPLICATION NO. P13/V1454/FUL
APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION
REGISTERED 4.7.2013
PARISH ABINGDON
WARD MEMBER(S) Angela Lawrence
Helen Pighills
APPLICANT Mr lan Burles
SITE 61 Oxford Road Abingdon, OX14 2AA
PROPOSAL Subdivision of the main house and the former

garage structure at 61 Oxford Road to create two
detached family homes complete with garage/car
ports and private gardens (As amended by Drawing
No: 13022-P01 Revision A and Tree Survey Report
accompanying agent's email of 18 July 2013).

AMENDMENTS One - As above

GRID REFERENCE 450358/198245

OFFICER Mr Peter Brampton

—_ -
- O

1.2

1.3

1.4

INTRODUCTION

No.61 Oxford Road is a large detached dwelling set well back from the street
frontage. It is accessed via an existing drive in the northwestern corner of the site.
The property currently benefits from a generous rear garden, although there is an
extant planning permission for the erection of a detached dwelling on the easternmost
part of the site. A location plan is attached at appendix 1.

Next to No.61 is a large link-attached garage. The plans provided demonstrate this
garage has been converted into two flats, a 1-bed and a 2-bed. No planning
permission has been granted for this conversion, but the works have become lawful
through the passing of time.

The site sits on higher ground to the street, with a gentle west to east upwards
gradient evident across the site. The house itself is of red brick construction under a
plain clay tiled roof. It is two-storey with a hipped roof structure on a north-south axis,
with gabled projections to east and west. The garage is a more modern brick and tile
structure, under a pitched roof.

It is important to note that No.59, immediately south of the site, is a comparable
building in age, design and materials. This site has recently benefited from the
erection of a detached dwelling on its rearmost part, in a similar arrangement to that
approved here.

The application comes to committee as Abingdon Town Council objects to the
proposal.

PROPOSAL

This application seeks full planning permission for the removal of the single storey link
between the house and garage to allow the creation of two detached family homes.
The main house will be a 5-bed dwelling, whilst the garage will be a 3-bed dwelling.
Each building will benefit from single storey rear extensions, whilst a single storey front
extension to the garage is proposed. Each property will have a private garden to the
rear. To the front, two detached garages will provide parking for the new dwellings.

Page 26



2.2

2.3

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

5.1

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

The proposed extensions and garaging are faced with a combination of vertical weather
boarding, brickwork and glazing underneath a flat roof. The garaging will have a
sedum roof.

Extracts from the applications plans are attached at appendix 2. Documents submitted
in support of the application, including the design and access statement, are available
on the council’s website

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

Abingdon Town Council — Recommends refusal — “The committee considered that
the proposed development represented an overdevelopment of the property which
would harm the character of the surrouding area and also that the proposed
development would not provide adequate living accommodation for those residing in
the units. Consequently, the application was in contravention of Saved Policy H14
(Sub-division of dwellings) of the...Local Plan 2011.”

Neighbour Representations — None received

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objections subject to
conditions relating to garage accommodation being retained, access, parking and
turning.

Waste Management — General comments on the council’s waste collection contract
provided

Forestry Team — Views to be reported to the planning committee as a verbal update

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

P12/V1708/FUL - Approved (13/09/2012)

The application is for a new two storey family dwelling and alterations to No.61 Oxford
Road.

P12/V0997 - Approved (18/06/2012)

Erection of a family dwelling on land to the rear of No. 61 Oxford Road and new
vehicular access. Demolition of a single storey side extension to existing dwelling.
P11/V1255 - Refused (27/03/2012)

Erection of a family dwelling on land to the rear of No. 61 Oxford Road and new
vehicular access.

P11/V0006 - Refused (17/03/2011) - Refused on appeal (17/01/2012)

Erection of two dwellings within land to the rear of No. 61 Oxford Road and new
vehicular access. (Re-submission)

P10/V0904 - Refused (08/07/2010)

Erection of two new dwellings and sub-division of the existing site. (Land rear of 61
Oxford Road)

POLICY & GUIDANCE

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies;

GS1 - Developments in Existing Settlements

DC1 - Design

DC5 - Access

DC6 - Landscaping

DC9 - The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
H10 - Development in the Five Main Settlements

Page 27



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Residential Design Guide — 2009
Sustainable Design and Construction — December 2009

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Principle of development

Policy H10 confirms that the principle of residential development within the built up
limits of Abingdon is acceptable. This is provided the character of the area is preserved
and there is no loss of facilities.

Character and appearance

Policy DC1 of the Local Plan states that development will be permitted provided that it
is of high quality and inclusive design. The layout, scale, mass, height, detailing,
materials and relationship to adjoining buildings should not adversely affect those
attributes that make a positive contribution to the character of the locality. Policies
DC5, DC6 and DC9 seek to ensure that all new development is acceptable in terms of
highway safety, include hard and soft landscaping measures and does not cause harm
to the amenity of neighbours.

Section 4.2 of the adopted Residential Design Guide states the key factor in the
subdivision of plots is that the sites context should dictate the approach for designing
and laying out the new buildings. New buildings need to fit comfortably within the
street, and there should be a positive relationship between the built form and the street.
Section 4.5 of the guide deals with development in lower density areas, including
Oxford Road Abingdon, and confirms that such areas are characterised by residential
properties, set in relatively large landscaped grounds. The established form and
character of these areas should provide the context for the layout and design. New
developments should be set back from the road to respect adjacent building lines and
visual gaps that reflect the general character of the immediate area should be retained.

The Town Council contends the scale of this development represents an
overdevelopment of the site that has a harmful impact on the character of the area.
Officers do not agree with this assessment.

Oxford Road is a main route into Abingdon, and is flanked by traditional frontage
housing. Buildings along the road are a variety of single, one-and-a-half, and two-
storey dwellings. The linear plots and the parallel siting of dwellings along this part of
Oxfords Road establish a lower density pattern of development. Mature landscaping
screening at the front, with generous rear gardens, is typical of this low-density
character.

The application site is typical of the area, with significant planting along the western
front boundary provided substantial screening of the front of the main house. The
house sits amongst the mature planting, and the site has a verdant suburban character.
The ratio of building footprint to plot size is small, even allowing for the substantial link-
attached garage.

Officers consider that, if the existing garage was not on the site and had not already
been converted to two small flats, the subdivision of this site in the manner proposed
here would be unacceptable. The small gap between the two houses is not reflective of
the character of the area. In this respect, the proposal is contrary to Section 4.2 of the
Design Guide. However, the garage does exist, and does provide two additional
residential units on the site. Therefore, the key to assessing this proposal is whether
the increase in built form has a material impact on the character of the site and the

Page 28



6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

surrounding area.

Turning to the garage first, this will remain largely as existing, providing the entirety of
the proposed first floor accommodation under the existing roof. The only additions are
two single storey flat roof extensions, one to the front and one to the rear, and a small
dormer window. Combined, these extensions will add around 31 square metres to the
existing structure, which has a footprint of around 60 square metres. Given the low
form of these extensions, which are subservient to the main building, officers are
satisfied the building can accommodate this level of development. The mature planting
fronting the road means that views of the converted garage as a dwelling will be
extremely limited from the public realm. Therefore the impact of the increase in scale
on the character of the area will be very minor. Moreover, the resultant building will
retain the scale and relationship of the existing garage relative to the main house and
will not appear out of keeping even when fully converted into a dwelling.

The proposed extensions to the main dwelling are also single storey in nature and do
not significantly exceed what could be achieved under permitted development. There
is no objection to these elements of the proposal.

Overall, officers are satisfied these proposals do not result in a significant increase in
the bulk of either building, particularly given the removal of the existing link between the
two. Given this, there is no harm to the character of the area from this proposal,
despite the rather close relationship between the two buildings.

The proposal makes use of the deep frontage on the site to erect two detached double
garages at the front of each property. Often, forward garages can have a harmful
impact on the character of the area, particularly when they break forward of a linear
building line such as this. In this instance, officers conclude again that the harm
caused does not warrant a refusal of planning permission.

Each garage is a single enclosed bay and a single car port. They reach only 2.7
metres in height, with a sedum roof helping them to blend into the densely planted
nature of the site. They project only around 2 metres in front of the adjacent no.63A,
which lies to the immediate north, and sit nearly 20 metres back from the front
boundary. Thus, the depth of frontage is still generous, and respects the character of
the area. For these reasons, officers do not consider the garaging will cause material
planning harm.

The proposed site layout provides 174 square metres of private amenity space to the 3-
bed dwelling and 252 square metres for the 5-bed dwelling. Whilst these gardens are
small, relative to the size of gardens seen elsewhere in the area, officers consider they
are acceptable for units of this size and it would be harm to demonstrate any material
planning harm. This is another factor in officers’ conclusion that this proposal does not
represent an overdevelopment of the site.

Overall, officers consider the increase in built form from this proposal is relatively minor
and so no material harm to the character of the area will occur. However, given the
relatively compressed nature of the development, it is necessary to restrict permitted
development rights for future extensions to the two buildings, and outbuildings within
their curtilage.

Future living conditions

The second element to the Town Council objection is that the overdevelopment of the
site will lead to poor living conditions for the future occupiers of the new houses. As
explained above, officers accept that the garden sizes are small relative to the area, but

Page 29



6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

are still generous for the types of dwellings proposed. Each house will benefit from
sufficient amenity space, and this is a key factor in securing good quality living
conditions for future occupiers. The two units, by being set on a building line consistent
with the area, will enjoy an acceptable level of privacy, not overlooking each other, or
being unduly overlooked by neighbours, or the new property to be built at the rear.
Overall, officers are satisfied that this proposal will provide acceptable levels of amenity
for future occupants.

Relationship to surrounding properties

The proposal will not have a significant impact on the amenity of neighbouring
properties. The low level nature of the proposed extensions ensures they will not block
undue amount of light to the rear of No.63a to the north, or No.59 to the south. The only
window that would allow a direct increase in overlooking of neighbouring land is the
dormer window within the converted garage. As this window serves a bathroom, it is
reasonable to obscure glaze and fix it shut by condition to preserve the amenity of the
occupants of No.63a. With this condition in place, the proposal will preserve the
amenity of neighbours.

Highway Safety

With the detached garaging, each house will benefit from appropriate parking. The 3-
bed dwelling will benefit from two spaces, whilst the 5-bed will benefit from four, given
the extra hardstanding available at the front of the dwelling. The highways liaison
officer has identified the overall level of parking provision is acceptable, but that the
internal dimensions of the garages are marginally too shallow. This minor increase in
size can be accommodated by a condition, which will also ensure the garages are
retained for the parking of vehicles.

The site provides adequate turning and manoeuvring space so that cars can enter and
exit the site in a forward gear. The existing access will be closed up, and a new access
provided in the southern corner of the site. This access was approved as part of the
previous application and will provide adequate visibility at the point it meets the public
highway. With the recommended conditions in place, this application will have an
acceptable impact on highway safety.

Other issues

A detailed tree protection scheme was agreed in respect of the previous application for
the new dwelling to the rear, given the proposed new driveway, which runs close to
some of the largest trees on site. The retention of these important trees, particularly
those on the front boundary, is paramount to the success of this scheme. Previously,
the protection of these trees was secured by a pre-commencement condition. The
additional building works required to implement this new scheme will largely take place
away from the larger trees. Therefore, it is reasonable to carry the same pre-
commencement condition across to this new application. A verbal update on the
forestry officer’s views on this aspect of the proposal will be given to the planning
committee.

A pre-commencement condition will cover matters of drainage, including SUDS and
ensuring no surface run off water discharges onto the highway. Adequate bin storage is
proposed for the front of each dwelling, to meet the requirements of the council’s waste
contractor.

CONCLUSION

The principle of residential development in this location is acceptable. The proposed
alterations and extensions to the main house and garage are acceptable, as they will
not have a detrimental impact on the character of the area. The overall amount of

Page 30



8.0

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

development proposed is not significant and does not represent an overdevelopment of
the site. Sufficient parking, turning and manoeuvring space will be provided for the new
dwellings, which will not have a detrimental impact on neighbouring amenity. The
future occupiers of the houses will enjoy a good level of amenity and privacy. The
retention of the mature planting within the site, particularly along the front western
boundary, is vital and will be secured by condition. Accordingly, subject to the
recommended conditions, the proposal complies with relevant local and national
planning policy and guidance

RECOMMENDATION

Grant Planning Permission subject to:

1 : Commencement Three Years

2 : planning condition listing the approved drawings

3 : Materials as per plan

4 : Boundary Details to be agreed

5 : Access, Parking & Turning in accordance with plan.

5 : Existing Access to be closed

6 : Garage Accommodation to be retained

7 : Tree Protection to be agreed

8 : Drainage Details to be agreed

9 : Restriction on permitted development — extensions, roof extensions and outbuildings
10 : North facing first floor window on garage to be obscure glazed and fixed shut

Author: Peter Brampton
Contact Number: 01491 823751

Email:

peter.brampton@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 31



Vale Intranet GIS Print

Page I of 2
FiSl\/(‘PSL;-{ Fui

6V Oxlod (Lo

:'M,'fu-.:z:a:m’““—av" { 1

T R

i

¥

/;0001955

idhits 2013 Ordnance Strvey

L

b,
i

. =

AT
R
~ae}§&: ,e;}; 4

N\ Vale
of White Horse

Diatrict Councif

Application

http://gisweb.sodc.com/intranct/valegis/1.84/print.as

The Drdnance Survey mapping included within this
publication la provided by Yalo of White Hoerse
District Counail under ligencs from ha Ordnance
Survey in order to fulfil Ita publle function lo act as
a planning authority.

No. P13/V1454/FUL

1:1,250 scale

Page 32
p?imageurl=http://gisweb.sodc.com/intranet/output... 19/08/2013

Persons vigwing this mapping should sonlacl
Ordnance Survey copyrght for advice whara thay

wish fa fleance Crdnance Survey mapplng for their
own use.




PI3IVIsSelrm.  Arpepses

= . + UL |

OXFORD Roag

Drdnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2013, All riphts reserved. Licence number 100020449

50 100

The ANDERSON ORR Partnership

The Studio, 70. Church Road, Wheatley, OXON, OX33 1LZ +: 01845 873936

PROJECT

PROPOSED SUB-DIVISION, EXTENSION & ALTERATIONS TO

D

scale client

LIZ0@M | R | BURLES

MARCH 13 { drawing

drawn LOCATION PLAN

JC

job no. rev
13022 13022- 101 /

61 OXFORD ROAD, ABINGDON, OXFORDSHIRE

Page 33




P V1454 [Pue Arpsmon 2

g | 2 5
— I ey T e B
i | frees to be removed :
R
All dimenslors must be checked on site and RE— . scale cllant
not scald fom s drwing The ANDERSON ORR Partership LSI0@I7 4R | BURLES
T e o Fepesls e The Stulio, 70" Church Roed, Whesllay, ORCR, X33 1LZ 1: 01043 6793 JLlTN 13 e
;::ucllu‘:;l::d ot campllarce wih the ulding PROJECT T pROPOSED BLOCK PLAN
For o in pracse nainad lacatian only PROPOSED SUB-DIVISION, EXTENSION & ALTERATIONS TO GE - -
Capyight reserved &1 OXFORD ROAD, ABINGDON, QXFORDSHIRE "iaﬂzz I]gozz_pﬂg /

Page 34



s Bkl
DUy aq E e - \\j i
patoues aq C $ue vt oo Ty oy

ey

PR

Y Lo4-Z208L | ZZOEL TAHSOI0IX0 “NOGTKIBY GV GHODD 19
Jg]  OLSNCUVEILY % HOISHALG NOISIAN-9NS 1350408
RVId 30S 0350408d | o oo
fae | EL .ﬁ..m SE4E2B SIRI0 Y ZTL TS N o, PO ) L oS st hﬁﬂ,ﬁﬁ.ﬂﬂﬂuﬂhﬂw
SITANA | 8W [ wanzt diysisupng yu0 NOSYIANY 24l ) [ p———
iR e o ojr o3 FRpS 32 S SOSEE 1y
FRANID BRI WA ELAVIL YA
w0 [} 1

PiIsiViase(rue APenOmZ

0 ERB sty
“Fiay g g s ped
T

Y04 a4y

e
UTTEUTSY

rpmue) supugis |

s
Q)=




P2l isse{rue Aomamoix 2

l*** ®
) it i

B —pm—— -
}BEDRUUM U s I g
" 0
D }‘“:"’5«,; vk }
| e BEORODH ) i
() e — -
| - | " .gm; I ‘F """ —\1
.m | ¢ oo |
Bl ® : BATHRCON Sy vee = I \ BEDROOM \] 6
I \ 0 |
L | | fainbe |
| et I ‘ el ‘
%5 ;hﬁ [ E 3 | . I ‘
| [- : L L J |
| T
UVING ROOK I s HALLWAY - b |
| @ | N 2 < e
| Il == — | r\—/ — = 1
i | =18 i saEooa Lus I
] = e,
| ﬁﬁ &) - ﬁ? +880 | SEDRO% |
W 4 e 3
. i ! s slelsbelss M iR "'E tark) II i
s i i e e
—
FIRST FLOOR PLAN s
;)
- ®
1 L P "
= ot {1 e b } SHTING R00A
e M o |f | mod ™ | o], s
LYz ROOM Ao Al | | il N w3
itly | potial, B sl \ LN L
ol ‘ | I L | ™ | i w ||TF] TR
o kol i i i .
0 L | = __:;i;i Bl ) . ﬂ BEDR(}% 1‘ — —— _ R
1) * 2 =l ¥ .

BN NG AR ] ) _ 5
@

"||\||K|||“I§
l\ﬂ

i
e WICHEN | WLLTLLLLLIN

oo ;e I[u\ e CAR PORT

= = T LVING ROOH s

=i I‘ / . BARAGE I \s %

O : 2 Hg’“ I ik .
i (W:tm g‘ L .
ol \ i It ==
BEDRODM L] i I'> -
N r o i =l . Ey LT /\ mg’“
D —— T
GROUND FLOOR PLAN ®
L w
0 5 10
| J ] I 1 | |

All dimensions must be checked on site and . . client
nol scalgd from this .dmwing The ANDERSON ORR P(‘.II“TnerShlp MR [ BURLES
: P:';’L"l:j"b"a"2&;2:?'&3”;235‘;‘:‘;"“:[:;';::r” The Siudio, 70. Church foad, Wheatley, OXON, OX33 1LZ 1: 01865 873936 MAY 3 o
Ezguri::gl:id for compliance with the Building PROJECT FLOOR PLANS AS EXISTING
For e In pracise named locefion anly . PROPOSED SUB-DIVISION, EXTENSION & ALTERATIONS TO EbF — —
Copyight eserved 41 OXFORD ROAD, ABINGDON, OXFORDSHIRE I] 3027 13022-SU07 /

Page 36



YU RPENDO N Z

iz

Frafvies

zw wc:m|mwomow mmcmﬁm_ JHIHSAY0LX0 NOAOINIFY T¥0H QY040 19 paniasas ybrAdony
“_w. 0L SNOIYYILTY 3 NOISNIIXT ‘NOISIAIG-ANS 03$0404d Ao uoynoo; pautou mmne“mﬂ”mm
ONILSIE SY SNOIVATE UmMDIp - L0 : mc_ﬁm:mmmg;t.s mu:cmﬂEouE* _umv_u“afu puB
Sunctp 926678 59810 Z1L EEXO 'NOXO “omney ‘Pooy yainys D/ ‘ompnig 4L __mw“_w MMM%M wm Hoﬁmwww_““_ %_HH
~ BUIMDIP Sl WiaJy P05 1ou
e TR
—_— % % MJJ — =
o ,
= = = - 1 | ]
NOHVAZTT - —_— -
a . E E H ﬂ_ HHH
= g 0l e ﬁ BN
[ / ?_\
ﬁsﬂ_ " h_sn.Dl
OH Y
/ P ————
= 0
U T £ .
s =
T HH W i

[T

]
&

Page 37



P13 Vs E e mppnpne.

SECOND FLOOR

T
!
T ed PO oot
N
o h ‘ l
N o stife mask bod {

O et |

| bt 2
]

FIRST FLOOR
piapazed singly
sty saknson
1otflighn tver
fiaposed shigle shacy
#xlonlon on eadsling footpird
§
[,
Il _Qw/t ! ﬁg
L
GROUND FLOOR
m - proposed wall o be romovad
SRR - proposed new constuctien ¢ 3 10
seale client
Al dimonsios st b chacked o sile and .
ot o g The ANDERSON ORR Partnership 1:100@A2 R | BURLES
o h dofe
f;::"jg':zl“sz‘g'c‘i"ﬁ';';“;N"c”“:}:;’f’é':;‘"‘::“ The Studls, 70, Church Boad, Yhaoiloy, OXON, OK33 1LZ +; 01845 873934 MAY3 [
z:j\u.:;l:;d far eomplience wih the Bullding PROJECT T EXISTING HOUSE
Far se n pracs semad looton rly PROPOSED SUB-DIVISION, EXTENSICN & ALTERATIONS TO _G[ PROPOSED PLANS .
Coppight served Pag e 'ISQXFORD ROAD, ABINGDON, OXFORDSHIRE ‘73022 13022-p04 /




pontasal pyBpidon

Ajue uoypao) pawny asisad v 2sm 16]
usp|nBay

Buipjing aus Y aoupijdwos Joy paypaya puo
JosUIBUT |INDRES D A PassessD aq pnoys
umoys sipsodosd auy uoyejuLseidu of Jallg
Bumoip sy wo pajoos Jou

pUD &{IS UO PBIAYD 30 ISNUI SUQISUSIP [y

N 50d-ce0el| - ceoel TAIHSOA0IXO "NOAINIEY V0N ¥0AXO 19
& SNOIIVATTT 43504084 E 0! SNOILYYILTY ® NOISNILXT “NOISIAIA-2NS 035040Nd
- ASNOH SNILSkA 300U
Bupanip | FE4ELB SOBL0 I Z11 SEXO "NOXD hapmaupm ‘proy iy g/ 'elpig &y
, STINg 1 4w diysiaupng YIO NOSYIANY YL
~ sl .
.MW.: 1 T | [ 1 [ ] (4005 b} Pappo ADpULKY, “UaANGFR YOU B PARPD 1D - Y H”._M"__H,wﬂ
.,mu 0l 5 D K vosapaasoeed
kK NOIVATI HI¥ON
=
W
00 Burmnag Jay/Dam 5L
DI WA wny falB.
4P o
pesodoid _ 1By jo01 pasodoid.

D . HROPEM J50LIGR TS0t

K NOISNADXT 3504044 p!

NOUYAIIT HLNGS

el sawiap poa}

=]

NOIYATH ISTM

ROPUIM JAULIOp Pasoroid

Page 39



PN usy ke svrgpens

aoflight
!( : 1 t -‘-'.
/ i
F bed 3 hadZQ :
| IRIE
| f I
‘ ‘7/»“/ E
N i
e, A
1 bothreem__]] NI % !
.| o K
- \
W master bed
] ’
l 4
|
1
1oeflight over
itchen
: {iving room 2
R
[
_____ J
GROUND FLOOR
%25 - proposed woll 10 be removed
KSR - proposed new construction 0] 5 s

dlient

LoV RS MR | BURLES

Al dimensians must be checked on site and
not scaled fram this drowing
Prior fo implementation the proposals shawn

should be assessed by a Structural Engineer | drawing

:zgu?:f:d for compliance with the Bullding PROIECT drawm COMVERTED GARAGE
Forvsan rco e s PROPOSED SUB-DIVISION, EXTENSION & ALTERATIONS T0. | &F PROPOSED PIANS
Coprigh e 61 OXFORD ROAD, ABINGDON, DXFORDSHIRE Yoz |Taozo-02 |

Page 40



v €0d-2¢0€L

(#4114} THIHSCA0AX0 ‘NOAINIFY ‘Av0d QY040 L9

SNOILYAT T 04504044

0L SNOLLY¥ILIY B NOISNIDA “NOISIAIG-ANS 0304044

- J9V4Y9 GILIANC) o
Bumosp PE6E/B G810 711 EEXO NOKO Faiipaysm ‘pooy yping? g7 ‘oipnig ayy
STIANG | AW diysisuping YIO NOSYIANY Yl
welp
“UONMAR NS UL ERAPO400(] - ¥ ASY B/ i}
l J 1 j ] ] ]
H g H

KOISHADG HOISNALG (504084

~ NOHYATH HIYON

PN i5a%) Fu . aprenow

NQISHLE (HS0J08

Buiproog rag)ean saqui

npsop WnjaRce Aol

B
H{CHE

panasel yipidony

A[uo uoypdo| pawny asiaud i asn 1oy
suoyninbay

Buipjing =yt g sausy o oy payay pun
desulBu] jpinpug o A9 pessestn sq plnols
umoys sjpsododsd ays uounpausidur of Jouy
Buimplp sy} Wof pajods jou

PUG 2315 UG PRDUD B0 JSALI SUDISUSLIPR Jy

NOILYAT1A 1SV

NOUYATH HLNOS

K uomans

NOILYASTT 1SIM

Page 41



1214354 [ e peprrny 2.

/] 90d-Teogl

VD AI504044
.~ 19YHY9 Q3143ANDD

Bupapip

SIANG 14w Y001

w2

PAHSTI0IX0 NOTINIAY “TYOY QI0IX0 19

0L SNOLLYYILTY B NOISNILA ‘NOISIAIO-GNS a3S0d0¥d
L2310

PELELY SPBL0 % 11 EEXO 'NOYO “Aepoayp ‘pooy yminysy "0/ "OIpMg 24)

diysisupng ¥YO NOSYIANY eyl

T T T 5 3

p

d00T4 GNNOA

panasal BkdoT

AU Lolodo| pauttl 3s15aid U asn doy
suoyp|nbay

Buipjing au) yw eounyjdwon oy paspay puo
JaauBug [pInRNIG B AQ passssse Sq pIneys
umoys spsadold sy uetjopaliaidul of fatg
Buimplp siy} Wy p2os iou

pumn 8jls US PeISYD 80 SN EUOISUSWILD jiY

Btuiptoog aquiyr

oot Hinps:




Agenda ltem 12

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

APPLICATION NO. P13/V0924/HH
APPLICATION TYPE HOUSEHOLDER
REGISTERED 26.4.2013
PARISH NORTH HINKSEY
WARD MEMBER(S) Eric Batts
Debby Hallett
APPLICANT Mr & Mrs S Ram
SITE 5 The Garth Botley Oxford, OX2 9AL
PROPOSAL Proposed two storey side extension and single

storey side/rear extensions. (Re-submission of
refused application P12/V2559/HH)

AMENDMENTS 18.6.2013
GRID REFERENCE 448834/205732
OFFICER Katie Rooke
INTRODUCTION

—_ -
— O

The application comes to committee as North Hinksey Parish Council objects.

1.2 The property, a semi-detached dwelling, is situated on a broadly rectangular plot that
runs south-west to north-east. Other residential properties are located to the south-
east, north-west and north-east of the site, with vehicular access obtained from The
Garth to the south-west. A copy of the site plan is attached at appendix 1.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a two storey side
extension on the north-west elevation of the property measuring approximately 2.25
metres wide at its widest point and by 6.8 metres long, with an eaves height of
approximately 5.9 metres and a ridge height of approximately 9.2 metres, and the
erection of a single storey rear extension on the north-east elevation measuring 4.5
metres wide by 3.9 metres long, with an eaves height of 3 metres and a ridge height of
4.5 metres. Further to concerns regarding the roof design of the single storey
extension this has been altered and revised plans provided. The application is
therefore being considered on this amended basis. A copy of the application drawings
is attached at appendix 2.

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
3.1 Inresponse to the original plans the following consultation responses were received.

3.2 North Hinksey Parish Council objects for the following reasons;

- Although there is a 1 metre gap between the extension and the boundary with 4
The Garth, as the land of 5 The Garth is higher than that at no.4 there will be
difficulties for building and maintenance purposes.

- As The Garth is built on a clay based hill there is the possibility of ground
movement.

- Potential problems of the sewer going under the boundary line with no.4.

- The height differences between plots means that the roof of the single storey
extension will be up to the bedroom level of no.4 and block out sunlight.

- The proposed development amounts to an over development of the site.

3.3 County Highway Liaison Officer raises no objections.

Page 43



Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

3.4 Local District Councillor, Debby Hallett objects for the following reasons;
- The proposed extensions will make exterior maintenance difficult / impossible for
neighbours.
- The proposal overlooks neighbouring gardens , reducing their privacy, and blocks
out light.
- The overbearing aspect of the proposal will change the character of the street.
- Adequate off street parking is not provided for the number of cars at the property.

3.5 Neighbours Six letters of objection have been received, which make the following
points;

- The proposal means that the ability to maintain the side facing gutter soffit, facia
boards and walls of no.4 would be lost.

- There are no properties that have had this type of proposed extension built, and
the development will lead to a terracing effect.

- The depth of the foundations required for the extension may fracture the
foundations of no.4.

- The change in ground levels between 4 and 5 The Garth means the single storey
extension will take light away from no.4

- Overlooking of the garden of no.4 will be caused.

- The extension will be detrimental to the aesthetics of the street.

- The light line between properties will be affected.

- Given that no.4 has historically been extended up to its side boundary, the query
arises as to whether setting the proposed extension 1metre back from the
boundary will be sufficient to avoid a terracing effect.

- There is no current precedent within The Garth (other than at no.1), for a double
storey side extension.

- The proposal will spoil an attractive, unique and coherent group of 1930’s houses,
which relies on greenery to the front and the visual gaps between houses, with
views to the trees in gardens behind, to maintain its charm and character.

- The difference in ground levels means the proposal will result in an overbearing
building height overlooking and overshadowing no.4.

- The extension goes beyond the natural lines of the houses in the street and
creates an overbearing and over developed site.

- The size and extent of the property and the creation of an extra kitchen makes it
feel like two houses, and there does not seem to be any increased parking
facilities.

- ltis an unattractive design.

3.6  Three letters have been received raising the following points;

- While it is good that the extension is set 1 metre in from the boundary line, it looks
as though it will still lead to a terracing effect.

- A single storey extension would be more sympathetic to the feel of The Garth and
would block out less light.

- The fact that houses on The Garth are clearly semi-detached is important as it
contributes to the overall coherence and elegance of the close.

- No.4 will no longer be able to maintain the side of the property, and natural sunlight
will be diminished significantly and it appears privacy will be lost.

3.7 Inresponse to the amended plans, which were put out for re-consultation, the following
comments were received;

3.8 North Hinksey Parish Council objects stating “Councillors remained concerned about

this re-submitted application as their concerns expressed in relation to the previous
applications had still not been addressed” and “Councillors still believed that the

Page 44



3.9

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

proposed development amounted to an over development of the site”.

Local District Councillor, Debby Hallett states “l think the plans still represent an
overdevelopment of the site for all the reasons expressed by the owner of No4, the
other neighbours and the parish council. This plot just isn’t big enough to
accommodate the expansion applied for without overlooking neighbours, overbearing
on neighbouring properties, light-blocking and access-preventing”.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P12/V2559/HH - Refused (08/02/2013)
Proposed two storey side extension with single storey side/rear extensions.

Refused for the following reasons:

1. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposed extension, which is not
subordinate to the main house, given its size and position immediately adjacent to the
north-west boundary of the site would appear intrusive in the street scene, create a
terracing effect and harm the visual amenity of the area. As such the proposal is
contrary to policy DC1 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 and the
adopted supplementary planning guidance contained within the Residential Design
Guide 2009.

2. In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposed single storey element of
the extension immediately adjacent to the north-west boundary of the site will, given the
difference in slab levels with no.4 The Garth to the north-west, dominate the private
residential amentiy space of the neighbouring property. As such the proposal will have
a detrimential impact on residential amenity contrary to policy DC9 of the adopted Vale
of White Horse Local Plan 2011.

POLICY & GUIDANCE

National Planning Policy Framework

The NPPF replaces all previous PPG’s and PPS’s and also indicates the weight to be
given to existing local plan policies. The adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan was
not adopted in accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, so
paragraph 215 of the NPFF applies. The local plan policies that are relevant to this
application are considered to have a high degree of consistency with the NPPF and
should therefore be given appropriate weight.

Vale of White Horse Local Plan (adopted July 2006)

Policy DC1 refers to the design of new development, and seeks to ensure that
development is of a high quality design and takes into account local distinctiveness and
character.

Policy DC5 seeks to ensure that a safe and convenient access can be provided to and
from the highway network.

Policy DC9 refers to the impact of new development on the amenities of neighbouring
properties and the wider environment in terms of, among other things, loss of privacy,
daylight or sunlight, and dominance or visual intrusion.

Supplementary Planning Guidance — Residential Design Guide (adopted 2009)
Section 4.6 refers to design of new extensions stating that they should be in keeping
with the shape, scale, proportions and character of the existing dwelling, and should be
designed to be subordinate to the original dwelling, with a lower ridge line.

Page 45



5.6

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

Specifically referring to side extensions it states (p.143) “Extending at two storeys to the
side of a detached or semi-detached dwelling can result in development right up to the
site boundary, resulting in an inappropriate “terracing effect”. The problem can be
exacerbated where an extension has the same roofline as the original building and
where a neighbouring property already lies on or close to the boundary”.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The main issues in determining this application are the impact on the visual amenity of
the area, the impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties, and whether there is
adequate off-street car parking within the site for the dwelling.

Impact on visual amenity

The Garth is characterised by 1930’s style semi-detached properties, several of which
have been extended. The proposed two storey extension has been set off the north-
west boundary of the site by one metre and set back from the front elevation of the
main house by 0.6 metres. The ridge of the extension is lower than that of the main
house, and the proposal does appear subordinate to the dwelling. The elevated
position of the site in relation to no.4 The Garth is such that the development will be
visible above this dwelling when approaching along the road from the north-west.
However, the position of the extension away from the boundary, and the inclusion of a
hipped roof mean that a terracing effect would not be caused. Subject to appropriate
materials being used, it is not considered that the proposal would harm the visual
amenity of the area, and it is not felt that the proposal could reasonably or justifiably be
refused on the basis of harm to the character of the area.

Impact on neighbours

There are no side windows in the south-east elevation of 4 The Garth, and the
proposed two storey extension will not harm the amenities of neighbouring properties in
terms of overshadowing or dominance.

The elevated position of the site in relation to no.4 means that the proposed single
storey extension will be visible from the garden of the neighbour above the boundary
wall. The relationship of the extension with the neighbouring garden is considered
acceptable in respect to overshadowing and dominance owing to the set back of the
extension from the boundary between nos.4 and 5, and the fact that the roof slopes
away from the neighbour. The nearest ground floor openings in the rear elevation of
no.4, a window and door respectively, serve a utility room. This is a non-habitable
room and it is not considered that the proposal could reasonably or justifiably be
refused on the grounds of impact on this room. The roof of the single storey extension
will, given the difference in ground levels, be ‘in-line’ with the first floor rear windows of
no.4. The roof profile of the extension is such, however, that it is not considered that
the amenities of these rooms would be compromised.

The proposed rear (north-east) facing windows in the development will provide angled
views over neighbouring gardens. These gardens are, however, already overlooked by
existing windows, and the relationship of the new windows in the development with
neighbouring gardens is not considered to be harmful. In order to prevent potential
overlooking of the private residential amenity space immediately outside the rear of
no.4 it is considered reasonable and necessary to remove permitted development rights
in respect to the insertion of new windows in the north-west elevation of the extension.

Impact on highway safety

The County Highway Liaison Officer raises no objections to the proposal, and there is
considered to be sufficient space on the driveway to provide adequate off-street parking
for the extended property. In order to ensure this is maintained it is considered

Page 46



6.7

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

reasonable and necessary to condition it.

Future maintenance

There is no specific requirement under planning legislation to require space to be
provided or maintained between dwellings to enable future maintenance to be carried
out. The application could therefore not be refused on the basis that space would not
exist between the new extension and the neighbouring property to put a ladder up to
undertake maintenance

CONCLUSION

The proposed development will not harm the visual amenity of the area or the amenities
of neighbouring properties, and there is adequate off-street parking within the site for
the extended property. The proposal therefore complies with the provisions of the
development plan, in particular policies DC1, DC5 and DC9 of the adopted Vale of
White Horse Local Plan. The development is also considered to comply with the
provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the following
conditions:

1 : TL1 - Time limit - full Application (Full)

2 : List of approved plans

3 : Prior to the commencement of development, details of all materials to be used
externally in the construction shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be built using only the approved materials.

4 : Notwithstanding the provisions of classes A, B and C of Part 1 Schedule 2 of the
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or the
equivalent provisions of any order revoking and re-enacting that Order), no windows or
rooflights shall be installed in the north-west elevation of the new extension without the
prior grant of planning permission.

5 : The existing parking provision in front of the property shall be maintained free from
obstruction to such use.

Author: Katie Rooke
Contact number: 01235 540507

Email:

katie.rooke@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 47



Pizjvonze il - § The Gorele, ‘3% APPENDIL L - Lel i

Drawing No: 12009/001
5 The Garth, Oxford

SITE LOCATION PLAN
AREA 2 HA
SCALE 1:1250

CENTRE COORDINATES: 448829, 205727

W
aeE

"

""""" l, o /;

- ;f“«««? ------------------ / '
o kD o » /‘v'/

Supplied by Streetwise Maps Ltd
www.streetwise.net

Licence No: 100047474
09/12/201216:12

Page 48



PISJVO"%'Z..H—}HH - § e Garmeh, Ezm(::) . Areemw 2 - L oF 3,

3%,‘! i
Blel =
1‘55 8;
(g8 |
_____ N i :
g
A
g
[ D=
x g
s |18
D D E
o s
B 1
w ] e
8- g =
ie |
fx g
£
B
i
E 1
Ei
! %§
a
i€ ¢ |
R
ELE5 £
e 2soll
<Elgmm003§

Block Plan 1:500

Page 49



eI P

BISL. 17T S1HELvA ONY ENDIS 10 LISDIMAZOD ANZENOD NALLN 1MI0H1PA CEORGCIIY HO G290 39 108 A Semiaesd Sl OLKMTSTH 1HOMAOD
DNIMYED §IKL WO TITV0S 33 DL SRS Ol

o 200/600ZL ou onta 16 2XO {0013 punass 4 100 3843 |

> SHUSPIOXO _

00}:1 uoneAs( Aenog I} .

- EVIS
g sueld Bunspxg yueD ayl § — + i ————
CHLWYL g \LarONs {403rCud
. MMYED v NOILJFDS30 | AZw
. wonNEeg

AwenDix 2

(LRt

T

, _P:f‘a' VoS Ly fuH - f;: The darch,

M

00431 TS HIND

W uayid Buaan —H

woaipag h

|
[
_
_
_
|
|
_
_
_
i

:rm___.___m_m__w___m—uf,f

3

weospag wiooIpag

]

Page 50

uoq@EAs|g Jucdq uoneas(3 spig uogeAs|J Jesy
|
N - L L R Y = | |_
| N
| = M = !
| — D M
! - I
el e o Sl ROy - T H“H_H”H”H”H.ﬁH
! |
| |
_ g N “
/ |
|
|
I




Agrenax 2 - 3063

8061 L9 SAMALLYA GHY SNOISHP LHStyAdD

“INZSHOO NELLRMA LIVOHLIA QT MO0 G (TH50 38 LCIN A SHMYE0 SHL “G3nu3535 1HDIMAZ0D

DHMYHG SHL DN GTTYS 30 O SHOSRIINE O

Page 51

P13 Vor i MK - € The Lol @%

. . . IVE ZX0
v uzc._m__m.x £00/6002 1 -on oo AISPIONG _ _ _ ‘ “
00t:1 . uoneas|3 Aojog [ i 100{4 punois |
i B sue|d pasodold : : _ -
ZUELIPL ! B HHED e | ! _ o w
- Sp— e _ | I I |
= | | | |
| | : - wowpag LYoy i
o Bld Jo0u - _ soolz 18 | m
- | ! _ | i |
P | I | I | | — 1 ¢ i
— - HJ . — u n
5 . .. i U _ _ _
L : | | wooupeg | _ Lot _
2 _ ~ u A wooipag _ M - — BuIAy _
! : _ | i _ N |
: _W — | ’ | T 1
X = ‘ i _ | _
- _ g * | w | _
i | =1 = | | i P i
_ \_\ nmxl = _ m ”ﬁ ﬁw _ Surng _
_ T _ :_2.:_..0“ Woo.psg _ _ i
I =1z . P _ _ _
| el — _ - . | -
3 ! | | w |
b | _ _ _ _
: | : : : :
! : uojeAals woid uoneaa|d opIS uoReAs| Jesy
!
b = - - b 4.
| T
i Bl
H“_H”H” R ¢ SO A M. ..
|
|
_

ﬁ.’ e "-"'f.




Agenda ltem 13

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

APPLICATION NO. P13/V1388/EX

APPLICATION TYPE EXTENSION OF TIME

REGISTERED 19.6.2013

PARISH ABINGDON

WARD MEMBER(S) Jeanette Halliday
Jim Halliday

APPLICANT Leafield Care Home

SITE Leafield Care Home, 32A Springfield Drive, Abingdon,
OX14 1JF

PROPOSAL Extension of time limit to planning permission P10/V0927.

AMENDMENTS None

GRID REFERENCE 449205/198007

OFFICER Mr Peter Brampton

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Leafield Care Home is a privately run care home located within a built up residential
area of Abingdon. The building spans the end of a small cul-de-sac and faces onto
the street. Amenity space is found to the eastern side and rear of the building.
Parking is located on the western side. A location plan is attached at appendix 1.

The building is two-storeys and is of brick and concrete tile construction. It has
previously been extended, with additional land sought in the mid 2000s to extend the
curtilage of the site

1.3  The application comes to committee as Abingdon Town Council objects to the
proposal.

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 This application seeks an extension of time of a planning permission originally granted
in 2007 and renewed in 2010, for extensions to the care home (P07/V0510 and
P10/V0927). These extensions consist of three single storey extensions at the eastern
end of the care home, to provide ensuite bathrooms to five existing rooms, a two-storey
side extension at the western end to provide four new rooms, and a single storey rear
extension to provide a laundry. The extensions will be of a simple pitched roof design,
to match the existing care home, and constructed in matching materials.

2.2  Extracts from the applications plans are_attached at appendix 2. Documents submitted
in support of the application, included the design and access statement are available on
the council’s website.

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

3.1  Abingdon Town Council — Recommend refusal — “The committee considered that

since the original planning permission had been granted, there had been new
development to a neighbouring property which materially altered the planning context of
this application, and in particular meant the implementation of the proposals would
result in over-development of the site, particularly in relation to the masssing of the
proposed development. Consequently, the development would be in contravention of
Policy DC1...of the saved policy of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011.
Therefore, members objected to the application to extend the time limit for planning
permission.”

Page 52



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

Highways Liaison Officer (Oxfordshire County Council) - No objections, subject to
previously recommended condition relating to parking being carried over to any new
consent.

Neighbour Representations — None received

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

P10/V0927 - Approved (13/07/2010)

Extensions to existing building to provide new accommodation, laundry room and en-
suite toilet facilities

P07/V0510 - Approved (02/06/2007)

Erection of a two storey extension and a single storey laundry extension with
associated parking.

P04/V1844 - Approved (11/01/2005)

Proposed en-suite facilities.

Also of relevance to this application is a planning permission granted in January 2013
for the erection of a new dwelling on land adjacent to 32 Springfield Drive
(P12/V2536/FUL).

POLICY & GUIDANCE
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies;

GS1 - Developments in Existing Settlements

DC1 - Design

DC5 - Access

DC9 - The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Issues

When considering an application to extend the time to commence works on a
previously approved scheme, the only considerations can be whether there has been a
material change in planning policy, or in the circumstances of the site and its
surroundings, that would change the overall recommendation.

Planning policy

The 2010 application was considered under the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011.
The relevant policies, referenced in Section 5 above, were valid at the time of that
application and remain valid today. They are all saved policies and have been found
consistent with the NPPF.

The major change in national planning policy since the grant of the previous application
has been the publication of the NPPF. However, the relevant local plan policies are
consistent with the NPPF, and so this has not changed the assessment made in 2010.

Overall, there has been no significant change in the policies used to assess this
proposal that would warrant a change in stance on the merits of this application.

Site circumstances

Abingdon Town Council has objected to this application. Their view is that the recent
granting of planning permission for a semi-detached house on land to the side of no.32

Page 53



6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

Springfield Drive constitutes a material change in site circumstances. They contend
this house, combined with the extensions proposed for the care home; represent an
overdevelopment that warrants a refusal of this application. Officers do not agree with
this assessment.

The new dwelling is currently under construction. It replaces a wall and detached
garage that previously served no.32. The garage immediately abutted the northern
side boundary of the site, which is the shared boundary with the care home. By
contrast, the new house is set marginally further away from this boundary.

This new house was permitted in 2013 and appears as a natural extension to the
terrace. It sits a comparable distance from the care home as the end-terrace house on
the opposite side of the cul-de-sac. It does not appear as an over-development of the
site, or out of keeping with the area.

In terms of the relationship between the care home and the new dwelling, it is important
to highlight that the proposed extensions on this western end of the building are
relatively minor additions. They only provide small cloakrooms for the five rooms in this
end of the building. The largest of these extensions will provide less than four square
metres of additional footprint. This is to a building with a ground floor footprint of nearly
400 square metres. Thus, the increase in footprint from these extensions closest to the
new house at No.32 is extremely minor.

Similarly, the increase in massing at this end of the building is very small. The
extensions will be subservient to the care home and will not compete with views of the
new house on the adjacent site. The gap between the new extensions at the care
home and the new house will be approximately 3.5 — 4 metres, not untypical in this part
of Abingdon. Given the single storey nature of the extensions, a reasonable gap
between the end of the terrace and the care home will remain and the definition
between the two buildings will remain.

The two larger extensions are located on the far eastern side of the building, well away
from the site of the new house. There will be no visual relationship between these
extensions and the new house. There is ample space for both these extensions within
the site, without harming the character of the area.

Overall, officers are satisfied the erection of the new house on land at No.32 has no
material impact on the ability of this scheme to be implemented effectively. The
application site remains as it was at the time of the initial consent, and the overall gaps
between the care home and its neighbours will remain largely as before. The overall
impact of this proposal on the character of the area will be acceptable, in accordance
with policy DC1 of the adopted local plan.

There is no indication that works on this scheme have started, or are likely to start
soon. Thus, it is appropriate to grant an extension of time, allowing the applicants three
further years to implement the proposal. All the conditions attached to the previous
consent are carried across to this new permission. These are summarised in Section 8
and cover materials, the provision of adequate parking and restrictions on new windows
in the two-storey side extension and the operating hours of the laundry room. These
conditions remain necessary to make this scheme acceptable.

CONCLUSION
There has been no material change in planning policy, or in the circumstances of the
site and its surroundings. Therefore, an extension of time for the planning permission is

Page 54



Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

acceptable.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION
To grant planning permission subject to:
: Commencement three years
: Approved plans
: Materials to match existing
: Permitted development restriction - first floor windows
: Parking as per approved plans
: Laundry opening hours - not between 22:00 and 07:00

OO =

Author: Peter Brampton
Contact Number: 01491 823751
Email: peter.brampton@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 55



 Vale Intranet GIS Print l@m\xa@ Coor Mome Pr2|Vizssl By Amsmoucd Page 1 of 2

o - RS

Ths Crdnance Survay mapping included within this
publication is provided by Vale of Whita Horas
Distrigl Gouncil under lleence from the Ordnance

§ Vale Application No. P13/V1388/EX e ey e e

»
! af Whlte Horse Parsonz viawlng thla mapplng should contact
elvict ool Ordnanca Survay capyrighl for advice where they
1:1,250 scale M wish to licenoa Ordnance Survey mapping for thair
own usa,

Page 56 -
http:_//gisweb.sodc.conﬂintranet/valegis/l.84/print.asp?imageurl=http://gisweb.sodc.com/intranet/output... 16/08/2013



& [l
) B

1B0YTLS 03008

)

NOJORiEY
TADH T T T
Ol SHOBHELKA (HIR0a08

BPFErn 2

U R colet

GOBEOE E5AI0

HES B2Y0 umg ylncioques T
PRy ARUZH, 0 908 SUARNG

w._.Um.:I.ON..ﬂ.Um
R R

12\V)3%8( &2y

"R PRy T wT

R

N,
o,
o

N

S TS R W Y g

a

w
@
i

SREST WIRLuns MOMSL ST WIS SR g anemng

p

ES

IR
fe

foy

#EE g8

T LRt BTy

SR R
Lo

SRR TR AT T

H3ion

Page 57

WD W PR ) FEBETE AR A T




W R
R
) )
T it R
e WEE md
waly Mg g

SHYG D SO (i L530 (3004004 § DRSS

Tisly Phmina

oo KOUSHNgY
HOH SO TEEY S
(01 SNOISNE BE (TH80d06d

g._mmﬁm@%awnﬁ.ﬁ
soarenessls
HE A7 WRG ubinvicquelt Buoy
pagy feln 07 S0 suleeg

SLO3 LY

e

3

Pig\v 135z

HERE
pu3 158k Burssixg

UOTiRARET Y951

Eaa =

s UTIONBLS Y

VITIRAH SR

UATIRABE

| | <~

ot
ol
Fbad

SNOTLIVAETZ 3RILS




Pz (N I'78a( B M’&’NDHZ.

LERNELLY

Pl

; oo, BT AEN D,

,w_mm

)

e B

bl 08g g 1248

sy fied e

CYE SR TR 0
pjsonty

NoGoNEY
“IROH SO (T 1
L ENORNEEN (30400

st

UiGs gea R U e g

SRICEE 266LD

HEg BExg Yorg (Bnoiaguei Bioy
BBOH AR B7 5ol SUASEG

N¥ld #8074 18HIZ

HATRAEEY 15%1

UIIRNETI (R 1

Page 59

HHENE YIRS 18]

&

==




tod - 080z1 08021

ol

Bt
NV1d 305 (3504044 winip

Bupsoop | 7] AQN

. Jop
SIWOH AWWMAIYY ev@o0z:1L
W ajpos

NOXO ‘NOU9INIgy

AT GTIIHINIAAS Z€ 1V SNITIIMA MIN G3SOd0Yd
LD3r0d

9EEE/B GIRLO 3+ 711 ELXO NOXO 421034z “pooy YD "0L ‘OIpmIS 8y

diysisupng ¥IO NOSYIANY YL

0z ot

Pra v jesg]| Br APFENIXZ

A VS Gyl
VAT

Guyemp Buisha

Euppiod pun ssax0 pasedo.d

ssamn Guyspea

afininb Suyspe jo su| papop

fug|femp pasodaid

Page 60



Agenda ltem 14

Vale of White Horse District Council - <cREPORT_NAME>» — «<REPORT_DATE»

APPLICATION NO. P13/V1579/HH
APPLICATION TYPE HOUSEHOLDER
REGISTERED 15.7.2013
PARISH KINGSTON BAGPUIZE
WARD MEMBER(S) Melinda Tilley
APPLICANT Mr & Mrs Burgess
SITE 5 Larch Close Southmoor Abingdon, OX13 5DD
PROPOSAL Extension to side of property.
AMENDMENTS None
GRID REFERENCE 440076/198410
OFFICER Mrs C Brewerton
1.0 INTRODUCTION
1.1 The application site is a semi detached dwelling situated in an established residential
estate in Southmoor. The property benefits from off street parking to the front and
enclosed rear garden. Its front entrance is located on the side of a forward projecting
element, currently the kitchen. In the front garden there is a mature coniferous hedge
along much of the common boundary with the attached neighbour at no.7, together
with a semi-mature copper beech tree and other shrubs.
1.2 Whilst the properties within the street are predominantly semi detached the
surrounding character is varied in appearance with most dwellings having been
altered and extended. The site is not located within any designated area. A location
plan is attached at appendix 1.
1.3  This application is referred to Committee as Kingston Bagpuize-with-Southmoor
parish council objects.
2.0 PROPOSAL
2.1 This application seeks planning permission for a single storey front extension, situated
to the side of an existing forward projection. It would extend 3.7m along a boundary
with the adjoining neighbour 7 Larch Close, and would be 2.25m wide as per the
submitted plans. Materials proposed include white UPVC and double glazed mono-
pitch roof. Plans as submitted with the application attached at appendix 2.

3.0 SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

3.1 Kingston Bagpuize With Southmoor Parish Council — Object: “The development would
create a very congested situaton as shown in the photos attached. (The upper photo
shows 5 Larch Close and the lower the already congested view from 7 Larch Close)
The proposed uPVC windows and door are unsuitable for this location as it would give
the appearance of a front conservatory.” The photographs are attached at appendix 3.

3.2 Neighbours - no comments received

4.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

41 P10/V1670/LDP - Approved (07/09/2010)

Application for a lawful development certificate for a proposed extension under the
existing front porch.

4.2 P85/V2398 - Refused (06/01/1986)

Extension to garage with bathroom at first floor level over and internal alterations.

5.0 POLICY & GUIDANCE

5.1 Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies;

Page 61



6.2

6.3

6.6

8.0

Vale of White Horse District Council - <cREPORT_NAME>» — «<REPORT_DATE»

DC1 - Design
DC9 - The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The main considerations in the determination of this application are:
¢ Whether the development is of a high quality and inclusive design such that the
scale, mass, height, detailing, materials used and its relationship to adjoining
buildings and open space do not adversely affect those attributes that make a
positive contribution to the character of the locality.
o Whether the development takes into account local distinctiveness and character
either in a modern or traditional interpretation
o Whether the development would unacceptably harm the amenities of
neighbouring properties and the wider environment in terms of loss of privacy,
daylight or sunlight, dominance or visual intrusion.

The proposed extension would be set back and would not intrude into the surrounding
street scene. It would be largely screened from view by a mature conifer tree located in
the front garden. It is considered that this would reduce its prominence within the wider
surrounding area.

The proposed design would be modern in appearance. The surrounding properties,
many of which have been altered and extended are not of a uniform character and the
proposed scale of the development would not dominate the front elevation of the
application site, falling in line with an existing forward projection, originally the garage. It
is considered that neither the materials nor the design would be harmful to the
character of the existing property or to the wider street scene and locality. This is
considered to be in accordance with Policy DC1 of the adopted Local Plan.

The proposed porch would extend along an adjoining boundary by 3.7m. Although this
is longer than the normal amount for a front extension recommended in the residential
design guide, when assessed in the context of the impact of the existing conifer hedge
the impact on the light to the neighbour’s nearest window is acceptable. Whilst the
extension would be visible from the neighbours nearest front facing window its use of
materials and design of the roof pitch would reduce its overall impact upon outlook,
privacy or visual intrusion to neighbouring amenity. This is considered to be in
accordance with Policy DC9 of the adopted Local Plan.

CONCLUSION

It is your officer’s opinion that the proposed single storey extension would not be
harmful to the character and appearance of the existing dwelling nor that of the
surrounding locality. In addition it would have little material impact upon the amenities
of adjacent properties in accordance with the Policies DC1 and DC9 of the adopted
local plan.

RECOMMENDATION

To grant planning permission

1 : Commencement 3 yrs - full planning permission
2 : Approved plans

3 : Materials as on plan

Author: Charlotte Brewerton
Contact Number 01235 540347
Email: charlotte.brewerton@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 62



Vale Intranet GIS Print Page 1 of 2
P'n:Bl\HS":!"i IHH’, APreNDIix 1

€ Lovdn (Love

g I
G Crown copyfight and databas

: BERSEc .
: ; S \ E "
“rights 2013.Ordnanog Siirvey 100018525 [t : P— e o RN . "

The Ordnancs Survay mappling Included withls this
publicalion |s provided by Yale of White Horse
Distriol Councl under licance from tha Ordnance
Survey In order to fulfill its pubile funcllon to actas
& planning autharily.

| Vale Application No. P13/V1579/HH

of White Horse
1:1R50 scale
Page 63

District Council
http://gisweb.sodc.com/intranet/valegis/1.84/print.asp?imageurl=http://gisweb.sodc.com/intranet/output... 22/08/2013

Parsons viswing this mapping should eontact
Qrdnanca Survey copyrlght for advice whera they
wish to llcence Ordnancs Survay mapping for thait
awn Use,




St et

\H4_ Appendix @)

e

i
»;v'v\- PO b B T s tM‘wmv%ﬂm

fig s

eintmirane [rents A
" R s L
o i
° b
vy
ittt i
P
JST—
J—
En—
-
F— "
: [
e e,
oot J— e
et
mn
I
¢ ==
H
i ]
o g
fudo o+
f e
haded g
e, —
i e funers
——.
g -

P - ROBENEOR OUT
kE : WBIE IS
N i ity DosLE CQlagen
i W GLAES Reor,

v o s e b e o b e

Dropsed Frondt Blevalion - de Ele

A«.T ' S ! PROPLSED FoReM

. Halt 7
i\; | T ; Bropeeed V0 Brew .

“i”‘ %r‘-‘ M%M@Mﬁ%
g Proposen %%l dar: B larch Close, .

Toredt. Lt
I e H Coopesad Plan . SethemooR
] K fichen . : n Oron, OWG &Db.

P

E}‘nw’w -
=
“1 Dwog .

wa L i Crenle VA .




;.W?.ww o) OAM. ﬁ(:.&.\wg,@ N
ThTAT B e Yeisuy
W = NOO.NW, OB

wd,ﬂzu* WEWSSJ e anowery Iﬂﬂdﬂm«g %ﬂﬁmm )

Page 65

9 B =
) =
.m \. - | E ulmu
s chY J“m
m Goedagy ' \ / ng |
174 J] —
S 1 Mi—
< ’ Nl | i
. ./ T
. . — - =
o
. _
6 —
2 —
N ——
Q. .HH.:..‘i,
= T
S — g
e FRvamag -
) - . J i
NP4 = s
. ' // - ‘ __H_“
:

‘swmiand oot _.mo.ubtm.L
sap] M eopm Rl PRl Y
,J..u{s.w. NJ)o.S:Nm r«mﬂ.’.nﬁﬂ?hvu

/4 nﬁuﬂu]w@\ ~1 :y\\v Enﬂw/.MU
oREERY] Shoes




Pia|visAA[HR . APPENDIX

Page 66



Agenda ltem 15

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 23 August 2013

APPLICATION NO. P13/V1000/FUL

APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION

REGISTERED 13.5.2013

PARISH BLEWBURY

WARD MEMBER(S) Janet Shelley

APPLICANT Taylor Mac Ltd

SITE Dallas Westbrook Street Blewbury, OX11 9QB
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 1

detached dwelling, and a pair of semi-detached
dwellings; with associated parking, turning,
landscaping and improvements to existing access

arrangements.
AMENDMENTS 22.8.2013
GRID REFERENCE 452849/185891
OFFICER Katie Rooke

—_
— O

INTRODUCTION

This application was originally presented at the Planning Committee on 21 August
2013. A copy of the committee report is attached at appendix 1. Further to concerns
raised by members in respect to potential overlooking into the rear garden of
Mountain Ash from the proposed detached dwelling at the rear of the of site,
committee resolved to defer consideration of the application to enable the internal
layout of the dwelling to be reconfigured.

PROPOSAL

The internal layout of the proposed detached dwelling has been amended so that the
nearest dormer window to the boundary with Mountain Ash now serves an en-suite
bedroom. Owing to reconfigured internal layout an additional rear dormer window has
been included in the rear (north-west) elevation of the proposed dwelling. A copy of the
site plan and revised drawings is attached at appendix 2. The amended plans have
been the subject of further consultation.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The reconfigured layout is considered to overcome the previous concerns in respect to
overlooking as the nearest window to Mountain Ash would be obscure glazed. In order
to ensure that the window remains obscured and fixed, apart from a top-hung opening
vent, it is considered reasonable and necessary to condition this.

CONCLUSION

The principle of the proposed development is considered acceptable, it will preserve the
character and appearance of the adjacent conservation area, it will not harm the
amenities of neighbouring properties, and there is adequate car parking on the site.
The proposal, therefore, complies with the provisions of the development plan, in
particular policies H11, DC1, DC5, DC9, HE1 and NE6 of the adopted Vale of White
Horse Local Plan. The development is also considered to comply with the provisions of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

Paée 67



8.0

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 23 August 2013

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that planning permission is granted, subject to the expiration
of a further consultation period with the parish council and neighbours and to no
new substantive objections being received, and subject to the following
conditions:

1 : TL1 - time limit - full application

2 : List of approved plans
3 : MC2 - materials (samples)

4 : Notwithstanding any details shown on the approved drawings, the new first-floor
window on the south-east elevation which serves an en-suite (as shown on drawing
number 121122-03 shall be glazed with obscured glass and shall be fixed shut, apart
from a top-hung opening vent only. Thereafter, the window shall remain obscure glazed
with top-hung opening vents only. Notwithstanding the provisions of class a of part 1
schedule 2 of the town and country planning (general permitted development) order
1995 (or the equivalent provisions of any order revoking and re-enacting that order), no
additional first-floor windows shall be inserted in the south-east elevation of the dwelling
without the prior grant of planning permission.

5 : Prior to the commencement of development, details of vehicular access to the site
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Such
details shall include visibility splays in both directions. The access and visibility splays
shall be provided prior to the occupation or use of the new development and, thereafter,
the visibility splays shall be permanently maintained free from obstruction to vision.

6 : Prior to the use or occupation of the new development, the car parking spaces
shown on approved drawing number 121122-02d shall be constructed, surfaced and
marked out. the parking spaces shall be constructed to prevent surface water
discharging onto the highway. Thereafter, the parking spaces shall be kept permanently
free of any obstruction to such use.

7 : Prior to the use or occupation of the new development, the turning space shown on
approved drawing number 121122-02d shall be constructed to enable motor vehicles to
enter the site, turn around and leave in a forward direction. The turning space shall be
constructed to prevent surface water discharging onto the highway. thereafter, the
turning space shall be kept permanently free of any obstruction to such use.

8 : HY19 - no drainage to highway

9 : Notwithstanding the provisions of class E of part 1 schedule 2 of the town and
country planning (general permitted development) order 1995 (or the equivalent
provisions of any order revoking and re-enacting that order), the garage
accommodation forming part of the development shall be retained for parking motor
vehicles at all times and shall not be adapted to be used for any other purpose.

10 : Prior to the commencement of development, an arboricultural method statement to
ensure the protection of trees on the site during construction shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. No works shall be carried out on site
(including any demolition works) before the arboricultural method statement has been
approved. The arboricultural method statement shall include details of the following:

1. - the location, materials and means of construction of temporary tree - protective
fencing and/or ground protection measures (in accordance with

Page2 68



Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 23 August 2013

BS 5837/2005 'trees in relation to construction');

2. - the programme for implementing and retaining such tree protection measures;

3. - any works to trees (in accordance with Bs 3998/1989 'tree Works') to be carried out
to prevent accidental damage by construction activities.

All works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved arboricultural method
statement. at all times during construction, the tree protected areas shall not be used to
park or manoeuvre vehicles, site temporary offices or other structures, store building
materials or soil, mix cement/concrete or light bonfires.

11 : Notwithstanding any details shown on the approved drawings, the sites internal
and external boundaries shall be enclosed in accordance with a detailed scheme and
programme of implementation which shall first have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The programme shall ensure that the approved
boundary treatments for each dwelling are completed prior to the occupation of that
dwelling, and the approved boundary treatments for the whole site are completed prior
to the occupation of the last dwelling.

12 : Prior to the occupation of any dwelling, provision shall be made for storing
domestic refuse and recycling materials for that dwelling in accordance with a scheme
which shall first have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. thereafter, the approved refuse and recycling materials storage facilities
scheme shall be permanently retained.

13 : Prior to the commencement of development, details of the existing ground levels of
the site and the proposed slab levels of the new dwellings shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved slab levels.

Author: Katie Rooke
Contact number: 01235 540507
Email: katie.rooke@southandvale.gov.uk

Paae 69



PB(VIC@OIFLUL AP END ]
Vale of White Horse District Council — Committee Report — 21 August 2013

APPLICATION NO. P13/V1000/FUL

APPLICATION TYPE FULL APPLICATION

REGISTERED 13.6.2013

PARISH BLEWBURY

WARD MEMBER(S) Janet Shelley

APPLICANT Taylor Mac Lid

SITE Dallas Westbrook Street Blewbury, OX11 9QB
PROPOSAL Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 1

detached dwelling, and a pair of semi-detached
dwellings; with associated parking, turning,
landscaping and improvements to existing access

arrangements.
AMENDMENTS 2.7.2013 and 9.7.2013
GRID REFERENCE 452849/185891
OFFICER Katie Rooke

—_
N

1.2

3.3

3.4

INTRODUCTION
The application comes to committee as Blewbury Parish Council objects, and letters
of objection have been received from four individuals.

The site is located towards the west side of Blewbury within the North Wessex Downs
Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, with vehicular access obtained from Westbrook
Street to the south-east. The site lies adjacent to Blewbury Conservation Area, the
boundary of which runs along the centre of the adjoining highway. A copy of the site -
plan is attached at appendix 1.

PROPOSAL
This application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing bungalow
and the erection of three dwellings; two semi-detached three bedroom dwellings which

~ replace the existing bungalow, and one detached four bedroom dwelling towards the

rear of the site. The semi-detached properties have an eaves height of 3.1 metres and
a ridge height of 6.7 metres. The eaves of the rear detached dwelling measure
approximately 3.9 metres, with the ridge height measuring 7.4 metres. As part of the
development it is also proposed to erect a detached double garage to be used in
association with the rear property. During the course of the application the height of the

‘rear dwelling and the detached garage were lowered and revised plans submitted. The

application is therefore being considered on this amended basis. A copy of the
application drawings is attached at appendix 2.

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

In response to the original plans the following consultation responses were received.
Blewbury Parish Council objects stating “We consider that this is an over-
development of the site, and out of keeping with the bungalows surrounding it. It
impacts on the privacy of its neighbours (Mountain Ash and Westbury)”.

Conservation Officer raises no dbjections subject to conditions.

County Highway Liaison Officer raises no objections subject to conditions.

Page1 70



3.5

- 3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

4.0
4.1

4.2

Pr(Vicoo| Fur Aesnmmet

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 21 August 2013

Waste Management Officer has provided details in respect to bin storage
requirements for the properties and the time they must be presented for collection.

Neighbours Three letters of objection received, which made the following points;

- The detached dwelling to the rear is one metre higher than the original approved
scheme, and the garage is closer to the rear bungalow windows of ‘Mountain Ash’,
leading to an overshadowing effect.

- The development is too dominant, overbearing and un-neighbourly.

- Lower rooflights in the side elevations of the front dwellings will be required to
achieve appropriate means of escape provisions.

- First floor bedroom windows in the detached property will overlook rear windows
and private areas to the rear of ‘Mountain Ash’.

- Number of additional vehicle movements at the narrowing point of this road,
caused by the increase from one dwelling to three, will be compounded by the
pavement obstruction caused by refuse bins that will increase in numbers; no
provision is made for refuse space within the site.

- Flues in the roof slope of ‘Mountain Ash’ are likely to be affected.by the proximity
and height of the adjacent dwellings.

- The protection of the mature horse chestnut tree towards the rear of the site, and
the continuance of the boundary treatment has not been resolved.

- The proposed designs are out of character for this part of the village.

- Visitors will park on the road.

- Noise and disturbance will be increased by allowing traffic into an area which is
adjacent to quiet garden areas.

In response to the amended plans, which were put out for re-consultation, the following
comments were received.

Blewbury Parish Council objects, stating “As before, we consider that this is an over-
development of the site, and out of keeping with the bungalows surrounding it. it
impacts on the privacy of its neighbours”.

Conservation Officer states “no comments on the amendments that have been made
to this application”.

Waste Management Officer comments as before.

Neighbours Three letters of objection have been received, raising the same issues as
before.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

P13/V0455/FUL — Withdrawn (19/04/2013)

Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of 1 no. detached dwellmg, and a pair of
semi-detached dwellings; with associated parking, turning, landscaping and
improvements to existing access arrangements

P12/V1134/FUL - Approved (18/09/2012)

Demoalition of existing bungalow and replacement with 3 new dwellings{As amended by
Drw No's 11-PAR-10F, 11-PAR-11C, 11-PAR-12C and by the revised Design and
Access Statement and Sustainability Statement from agent 14.08.2012).

Paée /1



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

56

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

6.1

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 21 August 2013

POLICY & GUIDANCE

National Planning Policy Framework

The NPPF replaces all previous PPG’s and PPS’s and also indicates the weight to be
given to existing local plan policies. The adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan was
not adopted in accordance with the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, so
paragraph 215 of the NPFF applies. The local plan policies that are relevant to this
application are considered to have a high degree of consistency with the NPPF and
should therefore be given appropriate weight, except for Policy H11 which has little
weight because the council does not currently have a five year supply of housing land.

At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development (paras.
14 and 49). Paragraphs 34 and 37 encourage minimised journey lengths to work,
shopping, leisure and education, and paragraphs 56 — 66 seek to promote good design
and local distinctiveness and integrate development into the natural, built and historic
environment. Paragraphs 126 — 141 refer to the need to conserve and enhance the
historic environment, including conservation areas.

Paragraphs 47 — 49 require local planning authorities to identify a five year supply of
housing land. Where this cannot be demonstrated, relevant local plan policies for the
development of new housing should not be considered up-to-date until the shortfall is
rectified. '

Vale of White Horse Local Plan {adopted July 2006)

Policy H11 states that residential development within the built up areas of defined
settlements (including Blewbury) will be permitted provided the scale, layout, mass and
design of new dwellings would not harm the form, structure or character of the area.

Policy DC1 refers to the design of new development, and seeks to ensure that

- development is of a high quality design and takes into account local distinctiveness and

character.

Policy DC5 seeks to ensure that a safe and convenient access can be provided to and
from the highway network.

Policy DC9 refers to the impact of new development on the amenities of neighbouring
properties and the wider environment in terms of, among other things, loss of privacy,
daylight or sunlight, and dominance or visual intrusion.

Policy HE1 relates to development within or affecting the setting of a conservation area,
and seeks to ensure that development preserves or enhances the established
character and appearance of the area.

Policy NES relates to development in the North Wessex Downs AONB, and seeks to
ensure development conserves or enhances the natural beauty of the landscape.

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Residential Design Guide (adopted 2009)
Section 3.8 outlines how fo protect neighbouring properties, specifically stating that
“Facing habitable room windows on upper floor should normally be at least 21 metres
apart” (p.98) and “Habitable room windows should normally be at least 12 metres away
from the flank wall of a neighbouring property” (p.99).

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The main issues in determining this application are whether the principle of
development is acceptable, the impact on the visual amenity of the area and whether

Page3 72



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

F12Wiooe|Fipe armopd
Vale of White Horse District Council — Committee Report — 21 August 2013

the proposal preserves or enhances the character or appearance of the adjacent
conservation area, the impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties, and whether
adequate parking is available for the existing and proposed dwelling.

Principle of development

Blewbury is identified in the local plan as a village that can accommodate new housing
development. The principle of demolishing the existing property and erecting three new
dwellings on the site has already been agreed as acceptable further to the granting of
planning permission P12/V1134/FUL. As part of this application the semi-detached
properties, which were originally to be located to the rear of the site, have become
replacement dwellings, and the detached dwelling is now located at the rear of the site.

Impact on visual amenity

This stretch of Westbrook Street is characterised by individual detached bungalows,
with a number having had their roofs converted to include first floor accommodation.
The proposed replacement semi-detached dwellings are similar in design to the
previously permitted detached dwelling which formed part of P12/V1134/FUL, and
maintain the form of a chalet style bungalow. It is not considered that the semi-
detached properties would appear out of place within the street scene, with the
character and appearance of the adjacent conservation area preserved.

The proposed detached dwelling towards the rear of the site is approximately 0.5
metres higher than the previously permitted semi-detached properties which formed
part of P12/V1134/FUL. Whilst views of this property will be possible from Westbrook
Street, its relative position is such that it is not considered that it would appear out of
place within the street scene or harm the visual amenity of the area. The existence of
commercial buildings to the north-west of the site, and an extant outline permission for
a new dwelling to the rear of ‘Westbury’, the neighbouring property to the north-east
(reference P11/V1652/0), changes the character and layout of the built form in this
area.

Impact on neighbours

The semi-detached properties are located approximately 1.2 metres away from the
south-west boundary of the site, and their position in relation to ‘Mountain Ash’ is such
that it is not considered that harmful overshadowing or dominance of this property
would be caused. Similarly the relationship with ‘Westbury’ to the north-east is such
that the amenities of this property will not be compromised. The inclusion of rooflights
in the south-west and north-east elevations of the semi-detached properties could
potentially lead to some overlooking of neighbouring gardens, however, their position in
the roof slope is such that it is not considered that harmful overlooking would be
caused, and it is not considered that the application could reasonably or justifiably be
refused on this basis. It is noted that the rooflights nearest to the south-west boundary
would provide views over the front garden of ‘Mountain Ash'’.

The position of the detached property towards the rear of the site is such that it is not
considered that harmful overshadowing or dominance of neighbouring properties would
be caused. First floor windows in the front of the property will provide angled views
over neighbouring gardens, however, it is not felt that any overlooking caused from
these openings would warrant refusal of the application on the grounds of harm to the
residential amenity. The proposed detached garage is situated close to the boundary
with ‘Mountain Ash’, but the height of it, coupled with the fact that the roof slopes away
from the neighbour, is such that its impact on the neighbour is considered acceptable.

The distance between the proposed dwellings on the site is appropriate fo maintain
adequate levels of privacy.

Paée 73



6.8

PieiNisz iFue - oyl -
Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Repoﬁ — 21 August 2013

Impact on highway safety

The proposal provides adequate parking for the new dwellings, and in order to ensure
this is provided and maintained it is considered reasonable and necessary to condition
it.

CONCLUSION

The principle of the proposed development is considered acceptable, it will preserve the
character and appearance of the adjacent conservation area, it will not harm the
amenities of neighbouring properties, and there is adequate car parking on the site.
The proposal, therefore, complies with the provisions of the development plan, in
particular policies H11, DC1, DC5, DC9, HE1 and NEB6 of the adopted Vale of White
Horse Local Plan. The development is also considered to comply with the provisions of
the National Planning Policy Framework.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to the following
conditions:

1:TL1 - Time limit - Full Application

2 list of approved plans

3 : MC2 - Materials (Samples)

" 4 : Prior to the commencement of development, details of vehicular access to the site

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such
details shall include visibility splays in both directions. The access and visibility splays
shall be provided prior to the occupation or use of the new development and, thereafter,
the visibility splays shall be permanently maintained free from obstruction to vision.

5 : Prior to the use or occupation of the new development, the car parking spaces
shown on approved drawing number 121122-02D shall be constructed, surfaced and
marked out. The parking spaces shall be constructed to prevent surface water
discharging onto the highway. Thereafter, the parking spaces shall be kept permanently
free of any obstruction to such use.

8 : Prior to the use or occupation of the new development, the turning space shown on
approved drawing number 121122-02D shall be constructed {o enable motor vehicles
to enter the site, tum around and leave in a forward direction. The turning space shall
be constructed to prevent surface water discharging onto the highway. Thereafter, the
turning space shall be kept permanently free of any obstruction to such use.

7 : HY19 - No Drainage to Highway

8 : Notwithstanding the provisions of Class E of Part 1 Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or the equivalent
provisions of any order revoking and re-enacting that Order), the garage
accommodation forming part of the development shall be retained for parking motor
vehicles at all times and shall not be adapted to be used for any other purpose.

9 : Prior to the commencement of development, an arboricultural method statement to

ensure the protection of trees on the site during construction shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No works shall be carried out on

Page5 74



Vale of White Horse District Council — Committee Report — 21 August 2013

site (including any demolition works) before the arboricultural method étatement has
been approved. The arboricultural method statement shall include details of the
following:

1. - The location, materials and means of construction of temporary tree - protective
fencing and/or ground protection measures (in accordance with

BS 5837/2005 'Trees in relation to Consfruction'};

2. - The programme for implementing and retaining such tree protection measures;
3. - Any works to trees (in accordance with BS 3998/1989 'Tree Works') to be carried
out to prevent accidental damage by construction activities.

All works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved arboricultural method
statement. At all times during construction; the tree protected areas shall not be used to
park or manoeuvre vehicles, site temporary offices or other structures, store building
materials or soil, mix cement/concrete or light bonfires.

10 : Notwithstanding any details shown on the approved drawings, the sites internal
and external boundaries shall be enclosed in accordance with a detailed scheme and
programme of implementation which shall first have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The programme shall ensure that the approved
boundary treatments for each dwelling are completed prior to the occupation of that
dwelling, and the approved boundary treatments for the whole site are completed prior
to the occupation of the last dwelling. :

11 : Prior to the occupation of any dwelling, provision shall be made for storing
domestic refuse and recycling materials for that dwelling in accordance with a scheme
which shall first have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Thereafter, the approved refuse and recycling materials storage facilities
scheme shall be permanently retained.

12 : Prior to the commencement of development, details of the existing ground levels of
the site and the proposed slab levels of the new dwellings shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried
out in accordance with the approved slab levels.

Author: - Katie Rooke

Conta
Email:

ct number: 01235 540507
katie.rooke@southandvale.gov.uk

Paae 75



PijviccofFoL. - Dallan, Westbrook Sereew g&(mf‘:ﬁ Awernd g, Lol 3,

Hall Barn

Ordnance Survey, (¢ Crown Copyright 2013, All dights reserved. Licence numbar 100020449

Om 20m A0m &0m

P ™ ™

Contractors, Sub Contractors and Suppliers are to check all relevant project

& MRCH/» e e P ey DA||LAS
@ & ) This drawlng is copyright and may not ba reproduced In any part of WeSt BrOOK Street
o farm without tha wrltlen consent of Fowler Architecture and Planning
§" é 19 High Street w——
Pewsey .

8 ,:# Wiltshire location plan |
s L} ‘ SNg 5AF scele ] drawn by date
'74, & tel (01672) 569444 1:1250 @ A4 BL Feb ' 2013

(o) NE fax (01672) 569488 121122-01 -
PL A““ B’Fa’a@@x’? 6 drawing no rey




APPENS 4R, BB

PBN\OCOH:OL, - Dallan , Worbroeh Surees., @Mdﬁ

b

88Y63S 2/910 Xed

PrrE9s 24910 8t . -
4V 6NS WEL MRS N ALS . ) oo S B
©anysHM
Aasmag
walig UBH 51
vl HOHDA 503 U005 UOUDAIIE JSIM UIOS
“& . mww = T 1

G inemy ! -

MO2

ORE
N

\Nv .
_% fe ] Ea_?
Ubyoud®
S EREE
3 20- ZELT
£f, 0 LV @ 00271 "00i-L
oep - _ o

UOLDAZI JS07 UdeN

auwieLpg ubseg

SN S (O u SOUEH O NS
RO TS
13R0S YOCUBLSIN * SYTIVO {
; s f ‘
“Blealtnlig P BTG . m 0O o -
om0 i3 SO0 LT ANTMA L] 10 1B Aute i
1 A e WsAaon £ BUpACID B3,
t pRanpoidal = 10U 7/Jl 4000 3w

S5UPLNA PUE T |5 SAE) IATE SUOFS. 2L LreBie] (¢
Ot 240 A5 P2 ST S oY

= - E
a/if Shraprry joum

EUSUE0 s pEpluT TSR] T
o Anr JuapRuT euiy
@/ afz papuasn unyd yoos 3 " 1504

VY B07g

Page 77



PUEE

83¥6aS £/9L0 Xed
PiP69G 74910 D191

JVE 6NS

SHYSHIM

Aosmed
10015 YBIH 61

S\ oy,

Ao BN B

O"URE )

4_

Q
N
/,V&\IOEK_ o

£0 ~ ZZLLTL Do

o

[Y3-EE] W&ol L
awp o

aweps ubissap

Sumem

NDXO

Ayy3aMIE

1TI41S HOOHALSAM SYTIVO
okl

BusUels puE aEOEHIY

s o S U A TR LU0} U0 12 A
N 06 J0U Bt FUR WBiAdna 5| BumEs SR

1SIM YINos

UOIIDAS]ES 1508 YHIoU

TJ

~

UOIDASID 15aM UHIoU

uonbpAagle 15D2 Yliou UOIDAS|2 1SaM

10 $BAZ] P SUCSU )
o9 01 D LAY PP SRV IS nawue._ﬁu
oo
m__:.en PAppo waoa sanoys v
a/9/5t paszea) saAn? pu 26K B
afefn PovlyD wUOIYIDY PUD WORIPITL T

P3fvicocolFoL - Dallas, Wenbrok Seeee, ewai,b

UGNDASID 15D UYINos

alnep

L

1——-“‘-“1:?—

up)d 400y} puncsb

wz || s a\rs n .

__T

upid Jooy 1sdij

Bujzel§ a:msq0

Jubiay e xoudto “uz

Page 78



Agenda ltem 16

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

APPLICATION NO. P13/V1044/LB

APPLICATION TYPE LISTED BUILDING CONSENT

REGISTERED 24.5.2013

PARISH WANTAGE

WARD MEMBER(S) Charlotte Dickson
John Morgan
Fiona Roper

APPLICANT Churchill Retirement Living

SITE Thames Valley Police, Police Station, Church Street
Wantage, OX12 8BW

PROPOSAL Demolition and rebuild of boundary wall on new alignment
in matching materials

AMENDMENTS None

GRID REFERENCE 439763/187793

OFFICER Mr Peter Brampton

—_
- O

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

INTRODUCTION

The application sits in a site of just under 0.3 hectares on the southern side of Church
Street. The site contains the former magistrate’s court and police station. Vehicular
and pedestrian access is provided along the northern boundary, directly onto Church
Street.

The existing buildings on site are a mix of single and two-storey brick structures, with
both flat and pitched roofs. The magistrate’s court sits at the front of the site and is a
two-storey flat roofed building. The front portion of the site falls within the Wantage
Town Centre conservation area

The site slopes sharply upwards from the road, with all the buildings appearing
elevated from Church Street. The site is almost completely covered by hard standing
or buildings. Wrapping around the eastern side and rear of the site is a public car park
that primarily serves the town centre and the civic hall. To the west lies a school,
which currently has a right of passage over the application site.

This application relates to the boundary wall that runs along the western boundary of
the application site. It separates the site from The Woolpack public house (no.16
Church Street), a grade |l listed building. The application site was used as a brewery
in the 1800s, with a three or four storey range built right up to the western boundary of
the site. It is believed the boundary wall is the surviving remnants of that building.
Given its relationship with The Woolpack, the wall is curtilage listed

It is important to highlight this application was submitted in parallel with the recently
refused planning application to demolish the buildings on the site to allow the erection
of a three-storey building providing elderly people’s apartments (P13/V1049/FUL).
The application was refused on the basis the scale of the proposed building was
harmful to the character of the area, that no affordable housing was proposed and on
issues relating to car parking and landscaping. It is likely this refusal of planning
permission will be appealed by the applicant.

This application for listed building consent is assessed on the relatively narrow merits

of the importance of the heritage asset. It is an assessment that is independent of the
merits of the planning application.

Page 79



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

The application comes to committee as Wantage Town Council objects to the grant of
listed building consent. A location plan is attached at appendix 1.

PROPOSAL

The infants school benefits from a right of access over the application site, which has
allowed vehicular access to the school site on an occasional basis. This access will be
closed as part of the applicants purchasing and redevelopment of the application site.

Consequently, the applicant needs to provide an alternative vehicular access to the
school. The works necessary to achieve this are creating an access through the
existing car park at No.16, demolishing the boundary wall, repositioning a number of
parking bays and re-building the boundary wall on a new alignment.

The new wall will step away from the current alignment, into the application site by
approximately five metres. This will allow the existing parking spaces to be moved east
the same distance, with an improved, wider, vehicular access running through the
central part of the site into the northern part of the school grounds. Approximately half
the wall will be realigned to create the new, wider, vehicular access and allow for the
repositioning of the parking spaces.

The applicants propose to build the new wall in a brick to match the existing, and that
the wall will be of a comparable height. Due to the topography of the site, and the need
to provide ramped access to the school, the new wall will, in part, be a retaining wall

Extracts from the applications plans are attached at appendix 2. Documents submitted
in support of the application, including the design and access statement, are available
on the council’s website. Committee members should be aware that the building shown
on the proposed site plan is not an accurate reflection of the scheme refused planning
permission. The building was amended prior to the council refusing the scheme

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS

Wantage Town Council — Recommends refusal — “The existing wall is in keeping with
the conservation area and the adjoining listed building. Any relocation of the wall should
require re-use of the existing materials. The proposal would remove car parking
spaces from the Woolpack property. When the Woolpack was in use all the car parking
spaces were fully occupied. The proposal would adversely affect the future use of the
Woolpack building. The Town Council is extremely concerned about the prospective
shortage of town centre public car parking when housing developments in the area in
the Local Plan proceed. The loss of car parking space in the town centre is
undesirable. The application indicates that the purpose is to provide a new access to
the school property other than through the former police station site. Given the period
over which the access will have been provided, rights of waywill have been established.
We would welcome the conservation officers comments on this application.

Conservation Officer - No objections, but expresses the desirability of having an
associated planning permission in place before the proposed works take place

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

P13/V1050/CA - Refused (13/08/2013)

Demolition of existing buildings on site to allow development to form 45 sheltered
apartments for the elderly including communal facilities (Category Il type
accommodation), access, car parking and landscaping (As amended)
P13/V1049/FUL - Refused (13/08/2013)

Page 80



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

Development to form 44 sheltered apartments for the elderly including communal
facilities (Category Il type accommodation), access, car parking and landscaping (As
amended)

POLICY & GUIDANCE
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies;

HE1 - Preservation and Enhancement: Implications for Development
HES5 - Development involving alterations to a listed building

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

Listed building matters

Paragraph 132 of the NPPF states, “When considering the impact of a proposed
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be
given to the asset’s conservation. The more important the asset the greater the weight
should be.”

Therefore, the central issue in the assessment of this application is the significance of
the wall to be demolished. As outlined above, the wall is curtilage listed, and is
believed to be the remnants of the brewery building that was once present on the site.
It is important to note that the wall is not listed in its own right, but benefits from a
similar level of protection due to its historic association with 16 Church Street, a grade |l
listed building.

The wall was not built as an integral part of the site of no.16 Church Street, but of the
adjacent brewery. Nonetheless, it remains to delineate the historic curtilage of the
listed building.

From observations on site, the eastern face of the wall, facing into the application site is
in reasonable repair. However, there are more signs of wear on the west, facing no.16.
It appears that the wall has undergone a number of remedial repairs, with a smaller,
more modern retaining wall, immediately abutting it on this side. Thus, the fagade of
the wall adjacent to no.16 Church Street has a diminished historic integrity and interest.

Furthermore, the section of wall closest to the road appears to have been rebuilt
relatively recently. There is a clear distinction between the brickwork in this section and
the older brickwork behind. There are other small sections of the wall that have
undergone repair.

Overall, these factors weigh against the historic interest of the wall and, consequently,
its importance as a heritage asset. For this reason the conservation officer has
confirmed the wall is not so significant that it warrants retention in its current form or on
its current alignment. He has highlighted it is desirable for the re-alignment of the wall
to be granted consent in parallel with planning permission for the redevelopment of the
site. However, in isolation, there is no objection on listed building grounds to the
proposed works.

To ensure the quality of the development, two conditions are proposed. One requires
the demolition of the wall with hand tools. This will ensure those bricks that are still
sound can be salvaged and re-used. The second requires a sample panel of the wall
to be erected on site for inspection before work begins on the wall proper. This will
ensure that appropriate new bricks are used, as well as a good quality mortar
appropriate to the location.

Page 81



6.8

8.0

Vale of White Horse District Council - Committee Report — 4 September 2013

Part of Wantage Town Council’s objection to this proposal relates to the loss of car
parking at No.16 Church Street. However, committee members will be aware that this
is not material to the listed building application. The Town Council has also raised the
historic access rights the school has over the application site. Similarly this is not a
material consideration for this application and it will be for the parties involved to reach
a mutually acceptable agreement outside the remit of the planning process.

CONCLUSION

This curtilage listed wall is not of such significance that its part removal and re-
alignment can be resisted. The proposed works will enable the creation of a new
access for the infant school and allow, subject to the granting of planning permission for
an acceptable scheme, the redevelopment of the disused magistrate’s court site.
Accordingly, subject to the recommended conditions, the proposal complies with
relevant local and national planning policy and guidance

RECOMMENDATION

To grant listed building consent subject to:
1 : Commencement three years

2 : Approved plans

3 : Demolition with hand tools only

4 : Panel of wall materials to be agreed

Author: Peter Brampton
Contact Number: 01491 823751

Email:

peter.brampton@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 82



Vale Intranet GIS Print

pi3lViowlLE - NTENDIR f
TVP L o

Page 1 of 2

CofE
infants
Schoal

2
o
s,
e

2
RN

%

5

s
5

e

%
2

DR

o
P
;w;%‘:%‘ s

,\.
o
os
S
e

X

.
Sifes:
ol
S
23
s
)
5

5
S

S
e

2

%

AoTes

Vale
L of White Horse

fstrler Courerf

Application No. P13/V1044/LB

1:1,250 scale

Page 83

N

The Crdnanga Survey mapplng Included within this
publication |s pravidad by Vale of While Horse
District Ceunell under llsense from the Ordnance
Survey In ordar ta fulfll lts publle funstion te acl as
a planning autharlty,

Parsane vlswing this mapping should contact
Ordnance Surusy copyright for advice where lhay
wish lo lleencs Crdnance Survey mapping for their
cwll Les.

http://gisweb.sodc.com/intranet/valegis/1.84/print.asp?imageurl=http://gisweb.sodc.com/intranet/output... 27/08/2013



644070001 o0lUnU 8oUsd)T “peasesel S3UBLL Y 2107 BLKdOD LMol (2) A2aing =ouDUPIQ

BBy wesnaey

HE S

i o

S ES S S UOSR Y

SERZEIBUIGE

FANSEE ONINHY G IS

NOIIVDOT Biis

o) o
2y

: \ |
: 2 -
: o
: % 5 :
f
: y )
. ; >
. e /
. B ) Y ,
: T v - _
1
: hX \ Tmhm-m_m
= 2 LTI
2 s
oy
3 =i ; L "wg't]
’ im0 oy
=, & d ,
. L2 ey 4 i 5 .f.»r.. ]
. o A o N
np-> 5 2 e
v Yo 2 5 95 3
. B 2 f LY L,

“ i ze &7
) P ; B = R & Iy
: i { B2 WCEE

& = . e

) o

Fies .

3
s

..Page84




g Bury ey

Ji&Le

e w#n_b_.wcmgﬁiﬁ«
FEngey st
L —

SACHE ONRUY R THE B

sjens| ays pasedosd @

sjarg] aits Bunse

 seai meu pesodaid

soau) Bugsie

NHVd - HYD
RELF

MHVd - HYD
©oonand

S




s sent o o e st e,

%WJE; SUEUBIEEN
YUY

evnssesrasrases onsosssemorese somnsemsmne somseesearer et

HYIHSdHEd 04X O

» ADVINVAMA «

aul puncib pasodosd

Hd¥Ls HOH

HILG PIRAIRE

[[EM maU - § UONBAS[S

HD LV ONVI

=
e =
€ 1
2 punceB Sugsixa T

Bel puncub Sunstss

au) puno:f Bugsike
T A = o punoib pesodaid .~
BE°26 FAcKA] 1828 1826
N
896 BYTE
300q padRpIeY

auy puncJb pasodoid

[[eM MBU - ¥ UOJBAB|D

atn punoi pasodod

s

SOZ6

85°%5

au)) puncsd Supsixe

] o
BEFG . "
8U¥S 898 FEhS wN.mW oy :
Fae 2858
SBUId0 D1RIILCT LI DU PACEIIE)
[fem mcwwmxm - g uonease
- . o iy
% /126 936
fre6 owdpieagesop equn  EZED =t — Erril — T L e
e e - ieve P
. ) 3T 578
o .,
- Lree LEEE
sBuidon asoucT WM Xog PeseE)
Hem D_«_ﬁmmxm - UChBAsi2
N R T -
SEE6 o AFE A6 couap pleogasoR e FEH

Page 86

sjeas| eus pasodoid e

k]

s|ang| @ys Bunsixe %,

a®

'D'\\\)‘“en

gi®

EET

parapet

i

P

s

I

CHURCH STR

g &
gt
Rl

[t




	Agenda
	Map and vision
	3 Cumulative Housing Figures
	Planning applications
	Planning Committee Summary Index - 4 September 2013_1

	10 Land at Priors Court Farm Church, West Hanney. P13/V0631/FUL
	P13-V0631-FUL - Land at Priors Court Farm, West Hanney appx

	11 61 Oxford Road, Abingdon. P13/V1454/FUL
	P13-V1454-FUL- 61 Oxford Road, Abingdon appx

	12 5 The Garth, Botley. P13/V0924/HH
	P13-V0924-HH - 5 The Garth Botley appx

	13 Leafield Care Home, 32A Springfield Drive, Abingdon. P13/V1388/EX
	P13-V1388-EX - Leafield Care Home, 32A Springfield Drive, Abin appx

	14 5 Larch Close, Southmoor. P13/V1579/HH
	P13-V1579-HH - 5 Larch Close, Botley appx

	15 Dallas, Westbrook Street, Blewbury. P13/V1000/FUL
	P13-V1000-FUL - Dallas, Westbrook Street, Blewbury appx

	16 Thames Valley Police Station, Church Street, Wantage. P13/V1044/LB
	P13-V1044-LB - Thames Valley Police Station, Church Street, Wa appx


